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Chairman’s
Statement
ERHRES

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am
pleased to present to shareholders the
annual report of VST Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2012.

AAERRESEORRIAMAREZEMLERE
RAB(AQATNEEMBAT (BRBIAEH])
BE—_FE——F+-A=+t—HBLEEZFH-
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Against the backdrop of weak U.S. economic recovery, the Eurozone debt
crisis and slower growth in China, the Group’s turnover for the year ended 31
December 2012 was HK$37,097,592,000 (2011: HK$32,617,058,000).

HMEERNLEEHETIR RMERLE KR EH
BEWE AEEBHEEZE T ——F+ = A
—+—HIEFEME ¥ A37,097,592,000

Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2012 amounted to # 7T( = & — — 4 : 32,617,058,000/% 7T ) °
HK$1,407,374,000 (2011: HK$1,513,443,000). Net profit for the year ended HE - ZEZ——-—HF+-_A=1+—HIEFE®
31 December 2012 amounted to HK$464,399,000 (2011: HK$488,794,000). £ # A&1,407,374,0008 (= &T — — F:

Basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2012 amounted to
HK35.82 cents (2011: HK36.80 cents) per share.

| am pleased to note that the top-line included higher contributions from both
the Distribution and Enterprise Systems segments. In the Distribution
segment, despite lower sales of our desktop PCs and notebooks, we have
seen good growth and higher sales in our hard disk products and mobility
devices. The Distribution segment recorded a 12% growth to HK$30 billion
for the whole of FY2012. In the Enterprise Systems segment, we have seen
higher sales in South East Asia, especially in the fourth quarter of FY2012.
The Enterprise Systems segment, which offers higher margins, recorded a
21.2% growth to HK$6.87 billion for the whole of FY2012.
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The Group has achieved another set of outstanding results for the year.
Leveraging on our diversified products and strong distribution network, the
Group further improved its product range and expanded its distribution
channels in Asia Pacific. The Group has strong distribution networks with over
27,000 business partners in six countries, including China, Thailand, Malaysia,
Singapore, Indonesia and the Philippines, and our businesses have also
extended from the distribution of IT products for the commercial and
consumer markets to the provision of enterprise system tools for IT
infrastructure, training, maintenance and support services. Our diversified
product lines include HP, Apple, Seagate, AMD, Intel, Western Digital,
Lenovo, Dell, IBM, Acer, Microsoft, Oracle, Cisco, Asus and many more.

PROSPECTS

Based on latest trends in FY2012, the Group will focus more on emerging
markets such as China, focusing on mobility devices; for Indonesia, our focus
will be on Enterprise Systems, storage and software products.

We will also put more resources to strengthen our partnership with key
vendors and work to broaden our product portfolio with them.

In terms of product portfolio, we will continue to tap on the growing market of
mobility devices despite its lower-margin as we need to position ourselves
well for this clear shift in global trends. At the same time we will also
emphasise Enterprise Systems to grow our margin.

As part of our moving forward strategies, the Group will continue to
strengthen our working capital management, improve cost management and
operational efficiencies.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEHREE (B

Lastly, | would like to thank our shareholders for their loyal support for the
Group. | would also like to take this opportunity to express my deepest
gratitude to all of our staff for their whole-hearted devotion and passion
towards their duties and to thank our Board members and business partners
for their trust and support. We are confident in overcoming the challenges
ahead and will strive our best to maximise returns for our shareholders.

Tay Eng Hoe
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2013
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Business Model and Strategic Direction

The Group is a leading Information, Communication and Technology (“ICT”)
products and services provider, serving a wide regional customer base. The
Group has 76 offices in six countries namely China, Thailand, Malaysia,
Singapore, Indonesia and the Philippines. The three main businesses are
Distribution, Enterprise Systems and IT Services. The Enterprise Systems
segment designs, installs and implements IT infrastructure for companies,
while the IT Services segment provides a comprehensive range of
professional, technical support and training services. Leading IT vendors such
as HP, Apple, Seagate, AMD, Intel, Western Digital, Lenovo, Dell, IBM, Acer,
Microsoft, Oracle, Cisco, Asus and many more use the Group’s network of
over 27,000 channel partners in the region to distribute their products.

As the leading distributor of ICT products in the region, we have established,
through our reseller channel, a broad customer base ranging from individuals,
small and medium enterprises to large corporations and government entities
who have been serviced by our regional resellers over the past 25 years.

Our infrastructure is built on a fully integrated Enterprise Resource Planning
system to manage our sales, distribution, finance and logistic operations to
provide efficient customer services with speed and reliability.

We have an extensive distribution network of over 27,000 resellers,
comprising retailers, system integrators and corporate dealers. These
resellers not only market a wide range of products but they also provide
support and repair services to the end-users.

The Group creates sustainable value for shareholders through the following
strategies:

o Focus on our key markets in China and South East Asia

° Focus on our extensive list of vendors to expand our product portfolio
o Focus on strengthening our working capital and financial management
° Focus on improving operating efficiencies and cost management
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWE DN

Business Review

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 December 2012 was
HK$37,097,592,000 (2011: HK$32,617,058,000). The Group has shown
strong growth in the Distribution segment, driven by increased sales of hard
disks and media tablets. In the Enterprise Systems segment, we have seen
higher sales in South East Asia, especially in the fourth quarter of FY2012.

Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2012 amounted to
HK$1,407,374,000 (2011: HK$1,513,443,000). Operating profit for the year
ended 31 December 2012 amounted to HK$611,119,000 (2011:
HK$700,643,000). Net profit for the year ended 31 December 2012
amounted to HK$464,399,000 (2011: HK$488,794,000). Basic earnings per
share for the year ended 31 December 2012 amounted to HK35.82 cents (2011:
HK36.80 cents) per share.

The Group has continuously aimed to widen our product range in order to
provide more choices to our customers. Our extensive and diversified product
lines now include HP, Apple, Seagate, AMD, Intel, Western Digital, Lenovo,
Dell, IBM, Acer, Microsoft, Oracle, Cisco, Asus and many more.

Prospects

The Group has the foresight to transform its business mix by moving into
mobility products and not be over-reliant on a few key vendors.
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In view of the uncertain global economic outlook, the Group will continue to
focus on the fundamentals of cost management, improving the working
capital cycle, strengthening balance sheet and operating cash flow.

With our experienced management team, the Group will continue to look for
opportunities to partner with more well known IT suppliers and continue to
expand our product mix and sales channels so as to achieve better results.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were
approximately HK$936,009,000 (2011: approximately HK$1,573,134,000).

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$2,266,597,000 (2011: approximately HK$1,870,974,000).
The gearing ratio, calculated as borrowings less cash and cash equivalents
divided by total equity, was 0.41 (2011: 0.11).

As at 31 December 2012, the Group recorded total current assets of
approximately HK$8,999,549,000 (2011: approximately HK$7,743,552,000)
and total current liabilities of approximately HK$5,811,951,000 (2011:
approximately HK$4,999,907,000). The current ratio of the Group, calculated
by dividing the total current assets by the total current liabilities, was
approximately 1.55 times as at 31 December 2012 (2011: approximately 1.55
times).

The Group recorded an increase in shareholders’ funds from approximately
HK$2,797,229,000 as at 31 December 2011 to approximately
HK$3,234,682,000 as at 31 December 2012.

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EIRE W R DA ()

Treasury Policies

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
resources and banking facilities provided by banks in the PRC, Hong Kong,
Singapore, Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia and the Philippines. The bank
borrowings of the Group are predominantly subject to floating interest rates.

Cash and bank deposits of the Group are mainly denominated in United
States dollars, Renminbi and Singapore dollars.

Transactions of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars, Renminbi, Singapore dollars, Thailand baht and
Indonesian Rupiah.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had property, plant and equipment held
under finance leases and a building pledged against secured mortgage loan
as set out in notes 5 and 18 to the financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any contingent liabilities.

Employees

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 2,249 (2011: 2,375) full time
employees.

The Group remunerated its employees mainly based on industry practice,
individual’s performance and experience. Apart from the basic remuneration,
discretionary bonus and share options may be granted to eligible employees
by reference to the Group’s performance as well as individual performance.
Other benefits include medical, annual leave and retirement schemes. The net
total remuneration paid for the year ended 31 December 2012 amounted to
approximately HK$444,244,000 (2011: approximately HK$444,282,000). The
Group also provides training courses or seminars to its staff.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to present
this Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 31 December 2012.

The Company endeavours to attain high standards of corporate governance
practices to enhance and maintain shareholder value and investor confidence.

Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company has complied
with the code provisions under the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(effective until 31 March 2012) and the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
(effective from 1 April 2012) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) except for some code provisions
which are explained in the relevant paragraphs below.

The Company will continue to review and improve its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure that its corporate governance practices
comply with the regulatory requirements and appropriate for the needs of its
business.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarised as follows:

Board of Directors

Composition

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experience
necessary for its independent judgement and fulfilling its business needs.

The Board currently comprises nine members (Mr. Li Jialin resigned as
Executive Director with effect from 31 October 2012), consisting of four
Executive Directors, two Non-executive Directors and three Independent
Non-executive Directors.

Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRS (E)

The Board of the Company comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Ms. Chow Ying Chi (Acting Chief Executive Officer)
(Appointed on 18 December 2012)

Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William

Mr. Chan Hoi Chau

Mr. Mao Xianggian

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tay Eng Hoe (Chairman)
Ms. Liu Li

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter
Mr. Li Wei
Mr. Ng Yat Cheung

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from
time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-executive Directors and at the same time representing at
least one-third of the Board with at least one Independent Non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-executive Director of his independence pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

The Independent Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of technical,
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent judgement to
the Board. Through their active participation in Board meetings, taking the
lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of interests and serving on
Board committees, all Independent Non-executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.
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Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board,
which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the Company
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors should take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board reserves for its decisions on all major matters of the Company,
including: the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as
the advice and services of the company secretary of the Company, with a
view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

Each Director is able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making request to the
Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.

The Board has full support of the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management to discharge their responsibilities.

Corporate Governance Functions

In order to meet higher standard of the corporate governance requirement,
the Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance; reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management
and the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirement; and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the
code and disclosure in this report.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRS (E)

Board Meetings

Directors’ Attendance and Number of Meetings

SEEEH

EFHEBRANEH)

X2

The attendance of Directors at Board meetings held during the yearended 31 HZEZE-Z——-F+ A=+ —HILFE K
EFHREZTSERZ2BEREINNT

December 2012 is set out below:

Attendance/
Number of Meetings
Directors BE= HE " BITEBERE
Executive Directors BTES
Ms. Chow Ying Chi MEZE A+
(Appointed on 18 December 2012) (R=F—=—F+=-_A+/\BHEZT) 0/0
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William TR KA 4/4
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau PR &M 5 A4 4/4
Mr. Mao Xianggian FE M AL A 4/4
Mr. Li Jialin (Resigned on 31 October 2012) FEAEERZZE-—ZF+HA=+—HEI) 3/3
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Tay Eng Hoe B 5K RN 5 A& 4/4
Ms. Liu Li ZIF L+ 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHITES
Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter PRESE L 4/4
Mr. Li Wei FIEEL 4/4
Mr. Ng Yat Cheung REBERE 4/4

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are normally
made available to Directors in advance. Notices of Board meetings are served
to all Directors in accordance with the Code before the meetings.

EFMRNTH

BFRAERHAREBRAGHZEREE —K
EHEENDETESE -ES
RARETRIXEZRES -

N N 2%
TEZRERNTERA

AENEFEXMHERMAER THERAE
ENMNEEFTE TR AL B EERERA Y
ELHMZAERRBES CEEB/EALAQA
ZRFBERRVBAR  HEREELMBER
E-BEFELBZEENRAFTERENESR
EREBISMHE -

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each Board meeting
or committee meeting to keep the Directors appraised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company and to enable them to
make informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.
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The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of
the Company normally attend all regular Board meetings and when
necessary, other committee meetings to advise on business developments,
financial and accounting matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance
and other major aspects of the Company.

Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for
comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is
open for Directors’ inspection.

According to the current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a Director, will
be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association also contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such Directors or any
of their associates have a material interest.

General Meetings

Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William, Mr. Mao Xiangqgian, Mr. Tay Eng Hoe, Ms. Liu Li
and Mr. Li Wei, were unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 24 May 2012 due to other important engagements. Al
other Directors had attended the 2012 annual general meeting to answer
questions and collect views of shareholders.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer (“CEQ”) should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and CEO should be clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr. Li Jialin was the Chairman and CEO of the Company. Subsequent to his
resignation on 31 October 2012, the current Chairman of the Board is Mr.
Tay Eng Hoe, and the Acting CEO is Ms. Chow Ying Chi. The positions of the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by separate persons in order
to preserve independence and a balanced judgement of views. The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning of the
Board in accordance with good corporate governance practice. The Chief
Executive Officer focuses on day-to-day management and operations,
implementing objectives, policies and strategies approved and delegated by
the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRS (E)

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each Director of the Company has entered a service contract with the
Company and renewable for successive years of one year each commencing
from the day immediately after the expiry of the current term of the service
contract unless and until terminated by either party by not less than three
months’ notice in writing. Under the service agreements, the initial annual
emoluments of each Executive Director is fixed and the remuneration payable
to each of them will be reviewed by the Board each year.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of Association. Pursuant to
the Company’s Articles of Association, all Directors will be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new Directors
appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment.

Prior to the setting up of the Nomination Committee, the Board as a whole is
responsible for reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating
the relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of Directors,
monitoring the appointment of Directors and assessing the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Board reviewed its own structure, size and composition regularly to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for
the requirements of the business of the Company. Where vacancies on the
Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection process by making
reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity
and time commitments of the proposed candidates, the Company’s needs
and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.

Pursuant to Article 86 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Ms. Chow
Ying Chi will retire from office and, being eligible, offer herself for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. In accordance with
Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Tay Eng Hoe, Mr.
Ong Wei Hiam, William and Mr. Li Wei will retire from office and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company. The Board recommended the re-appointment of the Directors
standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. The Company’s circular contains detailed information of the
Directors standing for re-election.
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Continuing Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction on the
first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge skills. The
Company continuously updates Directors on the legal and regulatory
developments, and the business and market changes to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities. All Directors have participated in continuous
professional development by attending seminars or reading relevant materials
and provided a record of training they received during the year to the
Company.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”). Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2012.

The Company also has established a written guideline on terms no less
exacting terms than the Model Code for governing the securities transactions
by employees who are likely to be possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company or its securities. No incident of non-compliance
by the employees was noted by the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRS (E)

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of reference.

The majority members of each Board committee are Independent Non-
executive Directors and the list of the Chairman and members of each Board
committee is set out under the section of “Corporate Information” of this
annual report.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors
(including one Independent Non-executive Director who possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise). None of the members of the Audit Committee is a
former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@ To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant or
external auditors before submission to the Board.

(b)  To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference to the
work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of engagement,
and make recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors.

(c)  To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management system
and associated procedures.

(d)  To review arrangements employees of the Company can use to raise
concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the

Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 December
2012 to review the financial results and reports, financial reporting and
compliance procedures, and the re-appointment of the external auditors.

The attendance of individual members at Audit Committee meetings is set out
below:
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Attendance/

Number of Meetings

HE BITEERE

Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter (Chairman) BRI G+ (F/E) 2/2
Mr. Li Wei e A 2/2
Mr. Ng Yat Cheung RHE%XAE 2/2

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external
auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2012 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all
directors’ and senior management remuneration and on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for development remuneration policy;
reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive directors and senior management; making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration of non-executive directors; reviewing and
approving termination compensation, dismissal or removal compensation
arrangements, and ensuring that no Director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee is able to access independent professional
advice whenever necessary.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRS (E)

One Remuneration Committee meeting has been held during the year ended
31 December 2012 to review (a) whether the remuneration package of the
directors and senior management are reasonable; (b) the basis of the
remuneration package, i.e. qualification, working experience and market level
of comparable position etc. to see whether any improvements needed to be
made.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors. The attendance of individual members at Remuneration Committee
meeting is set out below:

REBEEZZ—Z—F+-_A=+T—HBLEFE
N FTHEEGEERIT—RSE M%ﬁ@
EERaREEECFWNGERESR i (b)
FEBEE BNERE - Iﬁﬂﬁ&mft
AELBBUZHFHRKESE UTEREEH
BER T E -

FNEZE SRR =-2BYFNTES  TX
BEHEFHNZESRR2BREAINMT

Attendance/
Number of Meetings

HEBITERRE

Mr. Li Wei (Chairman) TIEEE(EE)
Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter BRES1E L
Mr. Ng Yat Cheung RAELAE

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee on 22 March 2012.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become board members, assessing the independence of Independent Non-
executives Directors, and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.

The Nomination Committee is able to seek independent professional advice,
at the Company’s expense, to perform its responsibilities whenever
necessary.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

No Nomination Committee meeting has been held during the year ended 31
December 2012 as prior to setting up the Nomination Committee, the Board
as a whole is responsible for reviewing the Board composition, developing
and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of
Directors, monitoring the appointment of Directors and assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee comprises one Non-executive Director, Mr. Tay
Eng Hoe as chairman and three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely, Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter, Mr. Li Wei and Mr. Ng Yat Cheung as
members.
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Responsibilities in Respect of the Financial
Statements and Auditors’ Remuneration

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, price-sensitive announcements
and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2012.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report”.

The Company’s external auditors are KPMG. The Group was charged
approximately HK$6,079,000 and HK$1,184,000 by KPMG for audit and
non-audit services respectively for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control system
to safeguard shareholder investments and the Company’s assets, and
reviewing the effectiveness of such on a semi-annually basis through the
Audit Committee.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure with defined
lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of responsibility and authority
to the senior management.

The management of the Company is responsible for establishing the Group’s
internal control framework, covering all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls. The internal control framework also
provides for identification and management of risk.

The management also conducts periodic independent reviews on the
operations of individual divisions to identify any irregularities and risks,
develops action plans and recommendations to address the identified risks,
and reports to the Audit Committee on any key findings. The Audit
Committee, in turn, reports to the Board on any material issues and makes
recommendations to the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBRE (&)

The Directors have conducted an annual review of the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staffing of the financial reporting function as
well as the oversight role of the Audit Committee and consider that the
existing internal control system of the Group is effective and adequate.

Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Associations, any one or
more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meeting of the Company, shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries from shareholders are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner. Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Unit 3312, 33/F, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the company
secretary.

The company secretary shall forward the shareholders’ enquiries and
concerns to the Board and/or relevant Board committees of the Company,
where appropriate, to answer the shareholders’ questions.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions at
the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the
Articles of Association of the Company. Shareholders who wish to propose a
resolution may request the Company to convene a general meeting by
following the procedures set out in “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene
an Extraordinary General Meeting”.
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Regarding the procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a director, please refer to the procedures available on the Company’s
website.

Shareholders’ Communications and Investor
Relations

The Company has established a range of communication channels between
itself and its shareholders, investors and other stakeholders.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The Chairman of
the Board as well as chairmen of other Board committees, and the external
auditors, are available to answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings. To
safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including the
election of individual Directors. All resolutions proposed at the shareholders’
meetings (other than on procedural and administrative matters) will be voted
by poll. The poll results shall be posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company respectively on the same day as the poll.

To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains a website
at www.vst.com.hk, where extensive information and updates on the
Company’s business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are posted.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, there had been no significant
change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary

EENDAIMERE

Executive Directors

Ms. CHOW Ying Chi, aged 44, was appointed as the
Acting Chief Executive Officer and an Executive
Director of the Company on 31 October 2012 and 18
December 2012 respectively. Ms. Chow has been
working with the Group for 16 years. Ms. Chow started
working in business development for the East and
North China region and was appointed as an operation
director of the Company in 2002. Ms. Chow is also the
director and operation director of VST Computers (H.K.)
Limited and the senior consultant of ECS Technology
(China) Limited, both are subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Chow is
responsible for the overall business operations and management of VST
Computers (H.K.) Limited, and operation review and management of the
development in ERP solution for ECS Technology (China) Limited. Ms. Chow
is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Chow holds a
Bachelor Degree of Arts (Honours) in International Business from the
University of Huddersfield in the United Kingdom.

Mr. ONG Wei Hiam, William, aged 41, is an Executive
Director and the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company. Mr. Ong is also an Executive Director and
the Group Chief Executive Officer of ECS Holdings
Limited (“ECS”), a subsidiary of the Company, which is
a public listed company on the main board of the
Singapore Stock Exchange. Mr. Ong holds a Bachelor
Degree in Economics from University College London
and a Master Degree in Analysis, Design &
Management of Information Systems from the London
School of Economics and Political Science. Mr. Ong is a member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and Fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Ong served in a senior position at PricewaterhouseCoopers and
has extensive working experience in London and Hong Kong.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)

Mr. CHAN Hoi Chau, aged 43, was appointed as
an Executive Director of the Company in July 2009.
He holds a Bachelor Degree in Electrical Engineering
from the University of Wisconsin-Madison in the
United States of America. Mr. Chan has over 20 years
of experience in personal computer and semiconductor
industry. Mr. Chan is currently the Senior Vice
President—Product Management of VST Computers
(H.K.) Limited, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. Prior to joining the Company in 2005,
Mr. Chan served as the Distribution Director of Advanced Micro Devices and
was in charge of the distribution business in China and Hong Kong.

Mr. MAO Xianggian, aged 47, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company in July 2009. He
was appointed as acting group Chief Executive Officer
and Executive Director of ECS in March 2010 and May
2010 respectively. He is also the Chief Executive
Officer of ECS Technology (China) Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company. He has more than 20 vyears
experience in China’s IT industry. Mr. Mao holds a
Bachelor and a Master Degree both in Mechanical
Engineering from the Tian Jin University. Mr. Mao also
holds an Executive MBA (EMBA) from the China Europe International
Business School. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Mao served as the Senior
Vice President of Digital China Holdings Limited (f# /1 #3815 R A 7)) (‘DC
Holdings”) and as a Director (Vice President) of Digital China Technology
Limited (f#/)1 5 R ERE AR AT (‘DC Technology”) simultaneously and
was in charge of the distribution business in both DC Holdings and DC
Technology.

-

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. TAY Eng Hoe, aged 61, is the Chairman and a
Non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Tay
joined the Company in 2008. Mr. Tay is also the
Executive Chairman of ECS and a Director of ECS ICT
Berhad, an associate of the Company, which is a
public listed company on the main board of Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad. Mr. Tay is the founder of
ECS Group and brings with him more than 25 years of
experience in the [T business. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Tay is also an Independent, Non-executive
Director of Trek 2000 International Ltd, a public listed company on the main
board of the Singapore Stock Exchange. In 2005, Mr. Tay was conferred the
Public Services Medal by the President of the Republic of Singapore in
recognition of his public services to Singapore. Mr. Tay holds a Bachelor
Degree in Science (Honours) from the LaTrobe University and a Master
Degree in Business Administration from the University of Melbourne.
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Biographical Details of

Directors and Company Secretary (continued)

EERAFAUEREE (&)

Ms. LIU Li,
executive Director of the Company in June 2011. Ms.
Liu was one of the founders of the Group and had
been responsible for the overall operations of the
Group’s business in the mainland China from 1991 to
1999 before the Company was listed on the Stock
Exchange in 2002. Ms. Liu holds a Bachelor Degree in
Beijing Construction Engineering University.

aged 49, was appointed as a Non-

Independent Non-Executive Directors

served three terms as
Stock Exchanges. Dr.

Dr. CHAN Po Fun Peter BBS, MBE, JP, FHKICPA,
FCPA (Aust.), aged 91, practised accountancy in Hong
Kong for 60 years. He has a doctorate in Offshore
Petroleum Technology and Modern Chinese Law and
is an honorary fellow of the Society for Underwater
Technology. Dr. Chan is a trustee of Hong Kong Shue
Yan University (also as its Research Professor) and the
United College of Chinese University of Hong Kong.
He was the Chairman of the Kowloon Stock Exchange,
a founding Director of the Stock Exchange and has
the Chairman of the former Hong Kong Federation of
Chan has been appointed by the Group since April

2005 as an Independent Non-executive Director. He is also an Independent
Non-executive Director of Chuang’s China Investments Limited and Chuang’s
Consortium International Limited, both are listed on the Stock Exchange. Dr.

Chan was also an Ind
Enterprise, Limited,

ependent Non-executive Director of China Resources
a company listed on the Stock Exchange and

subsequently retired in May 2011. He also serves as the Chairman of Audit

Committee and members of Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Mr. LI Wei, aged 58, was educated in the PRC,
Germany and Australia. He has over 20 years of
experience in establishing and operating businesses in
Asia, particularly in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Li
has previously served as the Managing Director of a
number of listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Li has
been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in August 2007. He also
serves as the Chairman of Remuneration Committee
and members of Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)

Mr. NG Yat Cheung, JP, aged 57, appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in September 2011. Mr. Ng holds an Associate Degree
in Arts in Business Data Processing from Chabot
College in the United States. Mr. Ng holds offices as
Director with a number of private companies which are
principally engaged in technology, property
development, finance and property holding. Mr. Ng is
also an Independent Non-executive Director of China
Agri-Products Exchanged Limited and Tao Heung
Holdings Limited, the shares of both companies are listed on the Main Board

of the Stock Exchange. Besides, Mr. Ng was also appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of Pan Asia Mining Limited (previously
known as “Intelli-Media Group (Holdings) Limited”), a company listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange and subsequently resigned
on 1 March 2009. He also serves as the members of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.

Company Secretary

Ms. YUE Cheuk Ying, aged 32, was appointed as the
company secretary of the Company in September
2011 and is responsible for the secretarial matters of
the Group. She holds a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) in
Public and Social Administration and a Master of
Science in Professional Accounting and Corporate
Governance from the City University of Hong Kong.
She is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. She joined the Group
in December 2009.
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

The directors (the “Directors”) of VST Holdings Limited (the “Company”) are
pleased to present their annual report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the distribution of information technology (“IT”) products
and the provision of enterprise systems and IT services.

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 7 to the financial
statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The largest customer for the year ended 31 December 2012 represented
approximately 20.6% (2011: approximately 10.2%) of the Group’s total
turnover, and the combined total of the five largest customers accounted for
approximately 25.4% (2011: approximately 13.8%) of the Group’s total
turnover for the year ended 31 December 2012.

In addition, the largest supplier for the year ended 31 December 2012
represented approximately 27.5% (2011: approximately 25.7%) of the
Group’s total purchases, and the combined total of the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 73.7% (2011: approximately 68.8%) of the
Group’s total purchases for the year ended 31 December 2012.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 51.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2012 of HK8 cents per ordinary share (2011: HK8 cents).
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Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2012 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 53 and note 15 to the financial statements
respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

Borrowings

Particulars of the Group’s borrowings are set out in note 18 to the financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in note
13 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2012, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
amounted to approximately HK$241,619,000 (2011: approximately
HK$310,325,000). In addition, the Company’s share premium account as at
31 December 2012, in the amount of approximately HK$774,195,000 (2011:
approximately HK$774,195,000), may be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares in accordance with the Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman
Islands.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEERE @)

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of
Association and there is no restriction against such rights under the
Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 136.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company repurchased
620,000 ordinary shares of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The repurchased shares were
cancelled. Details of the repurchase of shares by the Company are as follows:

BrBERE

RN E 2 EBETRANR B R E R
ZM&ER - MAESBERREER) MEFRE
ZERNZ B

EFFEHBEME

AEERRNBEARYBRFEZEEREEHN
BEBMEHNFEI16E -

BE HEIEDES

Bz -_Z——"F+-_A=+—RHIEE &
RAREBEBHERZHMEBERAR (BT
i [21620,000 f% A8 A 7] & 38 % o B8 B A% {5 B 1
HEH o ARQRERBMHZFBOT

No. of shares Highest price Lowest price Aggregate price

Month of repurchase repurchased per share (HK$) per share (HK$) paid (HKS)
BRES BEREBE exf

BE A4 BERGEE B (&) B (B x) BEKRGET)
January 2012 620,000 1.06 0.97 631,420

—E——F—A

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year
under review.
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Directors

The Directors of the Company who held office during the year ended 31
December 2012 and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Ms. Chow Ying Chi (Acting Chief Executive Officer)
(Appointed on 18 December 2012)

Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William

Mr. Chan Hoi Chau

Mr. Mao Xianggian

Mr. Li Jialin (Resigned on 31 October 2012)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tay Eng Hoe (Chairman)
Ms. Liu Li

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter
Mr. Li Wei
Mr. Ng Yat Cheung

Pursuant to Article 86 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Ms. Chow
Ying Chi will retire and being eligible, will offer herself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. In accordance with Article 87 of the
Company’s Articles of Association, Mr Tay Eng Hoe, Mr. Ong Wei Hiam,
William and Mr. Li Wei will retire by rotation and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of its Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant
to the Listing Rules and the Company considers the Independent Non-
executive Directors to be independent.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEERE @)

Directors’ Service Contracts

Executive Directors

All Executive Directors have also entered into service agreements with the
Company for a term of one year and renewable for successive years of one
year each commencing from the day immediately after the expiry of their
current term of service agreement, unless terminated by not less than 3
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

Under the service agreements, the annual emoluments of each Executive
Director is fixed and the remuneration payable to each of them will be
reviewed by the Board each year.

Non-executive Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed by the Board but
subject to re-election or retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting
as appropriate.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has an unexpired service contract
which is not terminable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
obligations.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of the companies comprising the Group was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the year ended 31 December 2012 or at any time during the year under
review.

Biographical Details of Directors and Company
Secretary

Brief biographical details of Directors and the company secretary are set out
on pages 26 to 29.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the laws of Hong Kong)) (the “SFO”) which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and/or short positions of which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and/or required
to be entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or which would have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:

(@) Interests in shares and underlying shares of the
Company
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Long/Short ordinary shares or issued share capital
Name of Director Position Capacity underlying shares held of the Company
BEEZBERS HAERATE BT
EEng R/ER 55 HERGEE REIZENEIL
Ms. Chow Ying Chi Long Beneficial owner 1,200,000 Share options 0.10%
BmEL L RAE EmlA A 1,200,000 17 B P% 1&
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William Long Beneficial owner 208,000 0.02%
FEMTTE ®BE EmEA A
Long Beneficial owner 1,200,000 Share options 0.10%
RAE EmEEA 1,200,000 17 i A% 18
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau Long Beneficial owner 1,200,000 Share options 0.10%
BR8N 5t A ®BE BEmEAA 1,200,000 17 Hi§ % 12
Mr. Mao Xiangqgian Long Beneficial owner 200,000 Share options 0.02%
EMmAIEE RAE EmlA A 200,000 15 % i 1
BHERERATD T _FFR
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(@) Interests in shares and underlying shares

Com pany (continued)

of the (a)

A2
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Number of

NAERG R EE KRG 2

Approximate
percentage of

Long/Short ordinary shares or issued share capital
Name of Director Position Capacity underlying shares held of the Company
BFEERRS EARRAE BT
BEEnA E/ER g7 HEROBE REAZHBNBEIL
Mr. Tay Eng Hoe Long Beneficial owner 5,200,000 Share options 0.42%
EB oK R0 % A ) ERBEAR A 5,200,000 & i 4
Ms. Liu Li Long Beneficial owner 168,168,000 13.56%
Bl + ®kAE EmEA A
Long Interest of a controlled 241,950,000 (Note 1) 19.51%
corporation
) REAEE R 241,950,000 (A 7% 1)
Long Family interest 56,146,000 (Note 2) 4.53%
ke ENIY X 56,146,000 (A1 #2)
Long Family interest 1,500,000 Share options (Note 3) 0.12%
) BN 1,500,000 17 f# A& 4 (ff &1 3)
Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter Long Beneficial owner 640,000 0.05%
bR & 518 £ RAE EmEEA
Long Beneficial owner 200,000 Share options 0.02%
®A BEmEA A 200,000 17 & M 1
Mr. Li Wei Long Beneficial owner 200,000 Share options 0.02%
FIERE = ERmEAA 200,000 & A 1
Notes: Baz -
1. 241,950,000 shares of the Company are held by L & L Limited, the entire 1. A N &) 2241,950,000% A% 1D BHL&L

issued share capital of which is equally held by Ms. Liu Li and her spouse,

Limited 58 * M AR 2 2 M2 HTR

ABBAMZ L RARBFEMLELEY

Mr. Li Jialin.
ERAE-
2. 56,146,000 shares of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the spouse 2. Bzt BEBFEEMLTEFEEAR
of Ms. Liu Li. & 2 56,146,000 i% f 15 °
3. 1,500,000 share options of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the 3. B uT 2 BEEMEETBEERALD

spouse of Ms. Liu Li.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(b)(i) Interests in shares and underlying shares of associated

b)i) R EE 2 R0 & HE

Dwecuws’Repoﬂ(conﬂnued)
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corporation — ECS Holdings Limited (“ECS”) eEa—ERBEAED
A (TMERBED

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Long/Short ordinary shares or issued share capital

Name of Director Position Capacity underlying shares held of ECS

BEZBERY HEARNKRE BT

EEnR R/7ER” v} HEROBE RAZBINEIL

Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William Long Beneficial owner 300,000 Share options 0.08%
TETEE RA BEmEAA 300,000 7 % i 12

Mr. Mao Xiangqgian Long Beneficial owner 900,000 Share options 0.25%
EMRAIEE £B ERBER A 900,000 17 B A% 4

Mr. Tay Eng Hoe Long Beneficial owner 700,000 Share options 0.19%
e e o) BEmEAA 700,000 17 % A% #

(b)(ii) Interests in shares and underlying shares of associated

corporation — ECS ICT Berhad (“ECS ICT”)

b)i)RBE EZE 2R D & HEE R

—= N\ 2

9 2 1 % — ECS ICT Berhad ([ ECS
ICT )

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Long/Short ordinary shares or issued share capital

Name of Director Position Capacity underlying shares held of ECS ICT

BEZBERSY (LECSICTE #17T

EEnR /&R &% HEROBE RAZBAIEIL

Mr. Tay Eng Hoe Long Beneficial owner 375,000 0.21%
B 5k A 5 A RAE BEmEAA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the
Directors nor the chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and/or short positions of which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

BREXHEBREN RZTE——F+=
A=+—H BMELXARQRAESEHEE
TEABRAR R I AMHEEEE(E
EZRBHFRBEKAEXVE) 2 TR
T - MBI D S B S %EP%EZE\*ETF
BENMEE GG EXVEETRED HY

;uﬁzts T&Hﬁﬁ“ﬁﬁZEﬂ%ﬁ‘khF
(BREFEEREES KBS G0 1§30
BEERGIERB SR/ HEE)HIR
BESMEEKNFEB2EZRTEAER
ANZIEFE B R M2 MRS HE R K
BELFTMBRANP ETARESHEITES
RHMIZESTAAEME ARNRQ R RBE AT
ZEREREIEE -

o
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EEERE @)

Substantial Shareholders’ and other Persons’

Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying

Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2012, so far is known to the Directors, the following
persons had an interest and/or a short position in the shares and/or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and/or required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and/or were
directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meeting

of any other members of the Group:

Hth A+ R IR
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AT ATRARRZ KM R A8 8 K7D+
HEBEREFSRHBEKRIEXVE F2K%35 &6
CEXBRARNRRIRBRIMBEE SR
REEN/ NBLARRAREELFLRE
MBI F3IFEFE SR MoERERHE
B R/ERWERERAEEABRI TRA
SETWEMKERRZBEREAE LRE
T {a] 28 B B A 7R 5 o T 4 B B E (B 5% 2k A
bz

K
i

wrpHY

Approximate

Long/Short Number of ordinary shares or percentage of
Name of shareholder Position Capacity underlying shares held shareholding
RREB R/ER g6 FEEERIEEROHE BARET D
Mr. Li Jialin Long Beneficial owner 56,146,000 4.53%
FEMEE ®AE EmlA A

Long Beneficial owner 1,500,000 Share options 0.12%

) ERBEA A 1,500,000 17 i A% 1

Long Interest of a controlled 241,950,000 (Note 1) 19.51%

corporation

RAE REEE 241,950,000 (1 5% 1)

Long Family interest 168,168,000 (Note 2) 13.56%

E3-) RIEHE R 168,168,000 (ff#2)
Ms. Liu Li Long Beneficial owner 168,168,000 13.56%
2 F %2+ RkE EnEEA

Long Interest of a controlled 241,950,000 (Note 1) 19.51%

corporation

RAE EEELEER 241,950,000 (A 5# 1)

Long Family interest 56,146,000 (Note 3) 4.53%

RA K& 56,146,000 (ff##3)

Long Family interest 1,500,000 Share options (Note 4) 0.12%

rAE eI 1,500,000 5 6 A% 4 (i it 4)
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Substantial Shareholders’ and other Persons’

Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying

Shares and Debentures ontinued)

Directors’ Report (continued)
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Approximate

Long/Short Number of ordinary shares or percentage of
Name of shareholder Position Capacity underlying shares held shareholding
REAR R/ER 54 FEEERIMEROHE BOREES
L & L Limited Long Beneficial owner 241,950,000 (Note 5) 19.51%
L &L Limited RkE EREAA 241,950,000 (41 7#5)
Eternal Asia (HK) Limited Long Beneficial owner 159,159,999 (Note 6) 12.84%
Eternal Asia (HK) Limited kB Em#EB A 159,159,999 (A7 6)
FYlm e R EEAR D AR A A Long Interest of a controlled 159,159,999 (Note 7) 12.84%
corporation
AT EEEEEROERRR KA EEEEE 159,159,999 (41 7#7)
RN THEE A SIS IR B R A A Long Interest of a controlled 159,159,999 (Note 8) 12.84%
corporation
R & B R B BR A A RAE REEEER 159,159,999 (K1 :#8)
Zhou Guohui Long Interest of a controlled 159,159,999 (Note 8) 12.84%
corporation
JE B o) REEEES 159,159,999 (#f#8)
Fidelity Long Investment manager 124,002,000 9.99%
Fidelity R REKE
BHEZERERDH = ——FFR
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Substantial Shareholders’ and other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures ontinueq)

Notes:

241,950,000 shares of the Company are held by L & L Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which is equally held by Ms. Liu Li and her spouse, Mr. Li Jialin.

168,168,000 shares of the Company are held by Ms. Liu Li, the spouse of Mr. Li
Jialin.

56,146,000 shares of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the spouse of Ms.
Liu Li.

1,500,000 share options of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the spouse of
Ms. Liu Li.

The entire issued share capital of L & L Limited is equally held by Ms. Liu Li and
her spouse, Mr. Li Jialin.

The entire issued share capital of Eternal Asia (HK) Limited are held by ;&3I4
R EERN AR AT,

6.88% and 49.52% of the shares of Z#3IT 14 B FEEA N BIR AT are held
by FUTHABEREARAR and FITHAHBERER AR
respectively. 49.1% of the shares of JZ&3I|HEt S FEERIIL AR A F] are held by
Y TEE S BUSIER B R AR

92.5% of the shares of JEIIITELAS EGIEA AR A=) are held by Mr. Zhou
Guohui.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, so far is known to the
Directors, no person had an interest and/or a short position in the shares
and/or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to

the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and/or required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and/or was
directly or indirectly interested in 5% of more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meeting
of any other members of the Group, or any options in respect of such capital.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEgRE (@)
Share Options B R
(@) Share option scheme of the Company @ ZAAE)ERETTS
The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 17 AAREZEZ_FWA+EAENT
April 2002 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to BiRESEI(%ZE]) meERK2HE
eligible participants for their contribution to the Group. Further details of EFIREHBAEZESE LB RER
the Scheme are set out in note 14 to the financial statements. KEBIELZEEB - Zat 8l 2 — &

BER P B MR E147A

During the year under review, no share options have been granted, EREEEAN BREMNERED ER
exercised or cancelled. Details of the share options movement under B TEEHE  REZTEFRL 2B
the Scheme are as follows: [tz SEFIBFUOT
As at Lapsed As at Exercise price
Name or category of 1January  during the 31 December per share
participant Date of offer 2012 year 2012 (HK$) Exercise period
R=T—=F R=ZZB—Z=F BRIHEE
SHEEHERER S ill=R —A—8 FRX®M +=A=+—8 (&) 176
Director
BE
Ms. Chow Ying Chi (Note) ~ 17/02/2011 1,200,000 — 1,200,000 2.672 17/02/2013 — 16/02/2021
BREZ L (W)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William 23/03/2011 1,200,000 — 1,200,000 2.434 23/03/2013 — 22/03/2021
FETEE
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau 23/03/2011 1,200,000 — 1,200,000 2.434 23/03/2013 — 22/03/2021
RGN %k &
Mr. Mao Xianggian 23/03/2011 200,000 — 200,000 2.434 23/03/2013 — 22/03/2021
EMAIEE
Mr. Tay Eng Hoe 20/02/2009 5,000,000 — 5,000,000 0.54 20/02/2009 — 19/02/2019
B ok A 58 A
23/03/2011 200,000 — 200,000 2.434 23/03/20183 — 22/03/2021
Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter 23/03/2011 200,000 — 200,000 2.434 23/03/2013 — 22/03/2021
PRESE L
Mr. Li Wei 23/03/2011 200,000 — 200,000 2.434 23/03/2013 — 22/03/2021
TREAE
Sub-total /N5t 9,400,000 — 9,400,000
Employees and others 17/02/2011 10,700,000 (200,000) 10,500,000 2.434 &2.672 17/02/2013 — 22/03/2021
EERHAM &
23/03/2011
Total #85t: 20,100,000 (200,000) 19,900,000
Note: The share options were granted to Ms. Chow Ying Chi as a capacity of Wit BREZTUARRRBEZHHER
employee of the Company and she was subsequently appointed as an EhiE FEER=-Z—Z=F+=A+
Executive Director of the Company on 18 December 2012. NBEZEEARARITES -

BHAERERDIE —T--F5H
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(b)

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

i&% (ll‘E)

Share option scheme of a subsidiary — ECS Holdings

Limited (“ECS”)

The Company’s subsidiary, ECS, adopted a share option scheme, the
ECS Share Option Scheme Il (the “Scheme II”) on 13 December 2000
whereby the Directors of ECS are authorised, at their discretion, to
invite ECS’s employees and Directors,
Directors of ECS and its subsidiaries to take up options to subscribe for

shares of ECS.

During the year under review, no share options have been granted.
Details of the share options movement under the Scheme Il are as

follows:

Name or category of

As at Exercised Lapsed

1 January during the during the

including Non-executive

(b) BB % i 4‘% shE—ENR
MEs BE (TMERBRD

KRB ZHBAREABKR-_ZEE
FT-A+=ARMA—ABERETSE —
EARR SRR BINET 2N - =it
EAMREFERERNBEBENRR
ZEBLREE(BEERNMEREENE
RAIZFRTER) BRI RBERNH
RBAD 2 FE A o

EREFEAN BRI AERED EX
o BRI ENIRE c BIREZ 2815
mE
As at Exercise

31 December price per

participant Date of offer 2012 year year 2012  share (S$) Exercise period
R-B-—Z=F R-B-=-F BRIKE

SEEMARER BFEH —HA—-B8 FRITE FRE®X t=ZA=+—8 (Fnsg ) TS

Director

EE

Mr. Tay Eng Hoe 15/10/2010 700,000 - - 700,000 0.55 5 years from date of grant

BB 5K RN 5 A B EH RS F

Mr. Mao Xianggian 15/10/2010 900,000 - — 900,000 0.55 10 years from date of grant

EmATEE B A ERE 105

Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, Wiliam  15/10/2010 300,000 — - 300,000 0.55 5 years from date of grant

TEMEE B B st 65

Sub-total /)N &t 1,900,000 — — 1,900,000

Employees 15/10/2010 10,950,000  (550,000)  (250,000) 10,150,000 0.55 5to 10 years from date of grant

B8 B B R s =104

Total 45t 12,850,000  (550,000) (250,000) 12,050,000

Annual Report 2012



(c) Share option of a subsidiary — ECS Indo Pte Ltd (“ECS
Indo”)

On 16 October 2009, the Company’s subsidiary, ECS Indo granted
120,000 share options to four senior employees of a subsidiary of ECS

DWecuws’Repoﬂ(conﬂnued)

Eéiﬁi /IE

) [ B 7 iR #E 5 & —ECS
Indo Pte Ltd ([ ECS Indo |)

—EZAFFATSRB KRR ZH
B A B1ECS Indo[A ECS Indo— K M B A

Indo. Al Z M % = AR E B R H 120,000 B8 X
T -
As at Lapsed As at Exercise
Name or category of 1 January during the 31 December price per
participant Date of offer 2012 year 2012  share (US$) Exercise period
R-ZE-—=F R=-Z-—-%F BRIEE
SHEEREARER BFEH —HA—8H FRE¥ +=A=t-—-H (2x) TEH
Employees 16/10/2009 113,392 (113,392) — 1.8156 16/10/2009 — 16/10/2012
E8

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or any
of the companies comprising the group, a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debenture of, the Company or any other body
corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses or their children under the
age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or
had exercised any such right during the year under review.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

The Directors consider that they have no interests in any competing business.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2012.

ngb\/ﬂ\ﬁﬂiﬁzgiu
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEERE @)

Connected Transactions

Connected transactions (also related party transactions) have been disclosed
in Note 30 of the financial statements.

The above transactions constituted connected transactions under the Listing
Rules. The Directors are of the opinion that the above transactions were
entered into on normal commercial terms and on an arm’s length basis and
the terms of the above transactions are fair and reasonable so far as the
shareholders of the Company are concerned and in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders of the Company taken as a whole.

The above connected transactions constituted exempted connected
transactions under the Listing Rules as each of the percentage ratios is less

than 0.1% as defined under the Listing Rules when the agreements were
entered into.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Emoluments

A summary of the Directors and senior management’s emoluments is set out
in note 27 to the financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float
Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the

knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float throughout the year ended 31 December 2012.

Corporate Governance

Details of the corporate governance are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.
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Audit Committee

The Company’s audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2012 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee which is of
the opinion that the preparation of such consolidated financial statements
complies with the applicable accounting standards and requirements and that
adequate disclosures have been made.

Auditors

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012
have been audited by KPMG who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Tay Eng Hoe
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
VST HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of VST Holdings
Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on
pages 48 to 135, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for
the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2012 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

22 March 2013

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

hREEEREER

As at 31 December 2012 A —ZE——F+_-_A=+—H

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
M 5T THT FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 5 122,782 127,351
Goodwill e 6 339,756 327,689
Interest in associates REE R R R 9 310,172 277,047
Deferred expenses EE R 10 19,432 19,854
Deferred tax assets BEERIBE E 17 55,735 49,622
847,877 801,563
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 K EH A E W FIR 10 5,340,437 4,043,098
Inventories FE 11 2,723,103 2,127,320
Cash and cash equivalents ReLHREE2EEBY 12 936,009 1,573,134
8,999,549 7,743,552
Total assets BMEE 9,847,426 8,545,115
EQUITY E=
Share capital % 7 13 124,004 124,066
Reserves s 2,876,711 2,463,461
3,000,715 2,587,527
Non-controlling interests FERER 233,967 209,702
Total equity HmRER 3,234,682 2,797,229
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

ReEEEERE

As at 31 December 2012 A =T —=—F+=-H=+—H

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B o FExT FAETT
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred income IR IE U A 16 24,231 23,549
Borrowings =8y 18 746,949 697,427
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAG 17 29,613 27,003
800,793 747,979
Current liabilities REBERE
Trade and other payables B RHEAMEMNKE 16 4,265,934 3,731,628
Borrowings ge 18 1,519,648 1,173,547
Taxation payable FESBEIE 26,369 94,732
5,811,951 4,999,907
Total liabilities HmeE 6,612,744 5,747,886
Total equity and liabilities EERkEELER 9,847,426 8,545,115
Net current assets REBEERE 3,187,598 2,743,645
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBARS 4,035,475 3,645,208

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March EEER T —=F =A==+ B KK

2018. HEFE o
Tay Eng Hoe Chow Ying Chi

BF 5K 0 W&

Director Director

ZF EFE

The notes on pages 56 to 135 are an integral part of these financial 2556ZF 1358 7 Mi T M A BBz 2 — 2
statements. o
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Balance Sheet

EEREBRX

As at 31 December 2012 A —ZE——F+_-_A=+—H

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
M 5T THT FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 5 533 932
Investments in subsidiaries RHRBARIZIEE 7 1,393,898 1,393,898
1,394,431 1,394,830
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments JEENE/S 10 309 345
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREZEY 12 1,123 2,121
1,432 2,466
Total assets HMEE 1,395,863 1,397,296
EQUITY Ex
Share capital % 7 13 124,004 124,066
Reserves Ee 15 1,041,134 1,099,550
Total equity HmER 1,165,138 1,223,616
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REEE
Amount due to a subsidiary FERTB B A Al 18 8 230,695 173,594
Other payables and accruals H b FE AT T8 N FEET R IE 16 30 86
Total liabilities Bmaes 230,725 173,680
Total equity and liabilities EZLEBHRE 1,395,863 1,397,296
Net current liabilities REBAEFE (229,293) (171,214)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABER 1,165,138 1,223,616

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March ZEZEGWR -_Z—=F=F -+ -_AHLERE

2013. P8 o
Tay Eng Hoe Chow Ying Chi

BB Kk F MEE

Director Director

EF EF

The notes on pages 56 to 135 are an integral part of these financial 556F 1358 2 Mz B A EHREK 2 — &
statements. 5o
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Consolidated Income Statement

BEER R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 =—Z—=—F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2012 2011
—E——fF —F——
Notes HK$’000  HK§000
B o TERT FAT
Turnover R 19 37,097,592 32,617,058
Cost of sales & B A (35,690,218) (31,103,615)
Gross profit £ 7 1,407,374 1,513,443
Other gains, net HAb U A F 5 20 20,559 32,237
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HEAX (531,547) (574,949)
Administrative expenses 1T X (285,267) (270,088)
Operating profit 1w A 21 611,119 700,643
Finance costs %2R 22 (75,862) (103,654)
535,257 596,989
Share of associates’ profits DG B = N B A 36,304 37,592
Profit before taxation R 5 A1 A 571,561 634,581
Taxation Bi1E 23 AL (145,787)
Profit for the year F W A 464,399 488,794
Attributable to: LT ALE:
Equity shareholders of the Company KN E=FEEA 444,236 462,516
Non-controlling interests FE 1 AR = 20,163 26,278
464,399 488,794
Earnings per share (HK cents per share) FhaM(EBREWL) 26
— Basic —EXK 35.82 cents Al 36.80 centsfll
— Diluted — HE 35.73 cents Al 36.70 centsfll
Dividend attributable to equity shareholders ERERFEEARE
Final dividend proposed R R B AR 2 25 100,000 100,000

The notes on pages 56 to 135 are an integral part of these financial Z556Z& 1358 2 Misr K AP KR K 2 — 3F
statements. 7 e

N
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEETHERRK

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H 2 =—Z—=—F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax:
Exchange differences

F A A

FREMEEBEA R
5 ER

Total comprehensive income for the year FRE2EMBARE

Attributable to: LT ALHEMN:
Equity shareholders of the Company RATERFAA
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR M A

Total comprehensive income for the year FRE2EMBARE

The notes on pages 56 to 135 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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2012
—E——F
HK$’000
FTHERT
464,399

66,010

530,409

503,710
26,699

530,409

HK$'000
TAT
488,794

357

489,151

463,502
25,649

489,151

FBE1BSHE 2 MFEA AT HRER 2 — 50



ment of Changes in Equity

MF

B

4=4

/ \ mom

% B 3R 3%

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #;

E-T—

—FE+—A=+—BLFEE

Equity
attributable
to the
Capital Company’s Non-
Share Share redemption  Capital  General Translation Other  Retained equity  controlling Total
capital  premium reserve  reserve  reserve reserve  reserve  eamings  shareholders interests equity
&x ARAEEE FER
REx ROEE BEEE EXHE -REE  ENRHE HURE RKREEN BAEGER i BRER
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000
TERT TERL TEr TFEx TEx TELT TER TERL TER THERT TERT
Note (i) Note (i) ~ Note (iii) ~ Note (iv) Note (v)  Note (vi)
B & () WEEEG) MG KRGy G EA()
Balance as at 1 January 2011 R=Z-—-—-fA—-H
2% 125,889 772,512 2,643 3,894 26,017 150,193  (181,371) 1,234,083 2,133,860 192,472 2,326,332
Profit for the year R T = - - - - - - 462,516 462,516 26,278 488,794
Other comprehensive income HEh2EBA - - - - - 986 - - 986 (629) 357
Total comprehensive income FREEHRALE
for the year - - - - - 986 - 462,516 463,502 25,649 489,151
Dividends paid to A 3H" RIERX
non-controlling interests 2 - - - - - - - - - (8,419) (8,419)
Transfer of reserves EE:d 1% - - - - 10,265 - - (10.269) - - -
Equity-settled Mﬁx BxfzER
share-based payment HEFE - - - 8,920 - - - - 8,920 - 8,920
Repurchase of own shares BERG
— Par value paid -BfEE (1,823) - - - - - - - (1,829) - (1,823)
— Premium paid -EHEE - - - - - - - (1693 (16,932) - (16932
— Transfer between reserves —ERER - - 1,823 - - - - (1,829) - - -
Balance as at 31 December 2011~ R -Z——4
+-A=t+-AzkEH 124,066 772,512 4,466 12,814 36,282 151,179 (181,371) 1,667,579 2,587,527 209,702 2,797,229
Representing: R&:
Share capital AR 124,066
Reserves g 2,363,461
Proposed dividend BRRE 100,000
2,687,527
Balance as at 1 January 2012 RZZT—ZF
—B—Bz&H 124,066 772,512 12,814 36,282 151,179  (181,371) 1,667,579 2,587,527 209,702 2,797,229
Profit for the year ERET - — 44423 444,236 20,163 464,399
Other comprehensive income HEEERA 59,474 - - 59,474 6,536 66,010
Total comprehensive income FRzANALE
for the year 59,474 444,236 503,710 26,699 530,409
Dividends paid to AIERREE
non-controlling nterests Z]RE - - (5,229) (5,229)
Transfer of reserves BREE (4,397) - - -
Equity-settled DR % 2 %
share-based payment HEERE - 10,228 10,228
Dividend paid ERRE (99,203) (99,203) (99,203)
Changes in non-controlling FEERKBARZ
interests arising from RRAE R D AT £ B
decrease of the Group’s FERESE
shareholding in a subsidiary (916) 2,838 1,922
Acquisition of an additional e JF 422 PR 1 25 M B
interest in a subsidiary from W@ RAEMES
non-controlling interests - (43) (43)
Repurchase of own shares BERHD
— Par value paid -BENEE = (62) 62)
— Premium paid -BREE (569) (569) (569)
— Transfer between reserves - HEREE (62 - -
Balance as at 31 December 2012~ R -Z——%+-H
=t+-Bz&H 124,004 772,512 23,042 40,679 210,721  (182,355) 2,007,584 3,000,715 233,967 3,234,682
Representing: R&:
Share capital AR 124,004
Resenves Al 2,776,711
Proposed dividend BHERE 100,000

The notes on pages 56 to 135 are

statements.

an integral part of these financial

3,000,715
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

II'/T/\ qh)(%#ﬁ#&% (II‘E)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # = ==

Notes:

(i)

(v)

(vi)

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

——F+ZA=t—HIEEE

The share premium account of the Group includes: (a) the difference between
the nominal values of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired and that of
the Company issued in exchange pursuant to the Group reorganisation in April
2002; (b) the capitalisation issue in April 2002; and (c) the premium arising from
the new issue of shares, net of share issuance costs.

In accordance with the Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman lIslands, the
share premium account is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business. The share premium may also be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

The capital redemption reserve comprises the par value of the cancelled shares
of the Company transferred from retained earnings pursuant to Companies Law
(revised) of the Cayman Islands.

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options granted to employees of the Company and the Group
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in Note 2.16(d).

According to the current the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) Company Law,
the PRC subsidiaries of the Group are required to transfer 10% of their profits
after taxation to statutory surplus reserve until the surplus reserve balance
reaches 50% of the registered capital. For the purpose of calculating the amount
to be transferred to the reserve, the profit after taxation is the amount determined
under PRC accounting standards. The amount of transfer to this reserve has to
be made before profit distribution to shareholders. In accordance with the
relevant regulations, this reserve may be used to make up any losses incurred or
to increase the registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2.3(c).

Other reserve comprises the difference between consideration paid and the

relevant share of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary for the
transactions with holders of non-controlling interests of subsidiaries (Note 2.2(a)).

Annual Report 2012
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Consolidated Cash FIow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # = =%

nv'ﬁ T IE, 37 /)IL E $& ’13—%

2012
—E—_F
Notes HK$’000
B 5 FHET
Cash flows from operating activities BEXBIRERE
Net cash (used in)/generated from operations (BT, FBIREFE 284 (724,576)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BENEENEH (103,754)
Overseas tax paid B8N E (75,019)
Net cash (used in)/generated from wEES (A FiBRe
operating activities F (903,349)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHZ2RERE
Interest received BIF B 7,795
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE WELRE (13,801)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BEREE
plant and equipment Fr8 38 416
Dividends received from an associate U B Bt 2N B iR B 13,925
Net cash generated from/(used in) KEERHIE/(FTA)R:
investing activities il
Cash flows from financing activities REGTH2HRSRE
Payment for repurchase of shares B Bl % 19 1+ 3% (631)
Exercise of share options by JEIER R TTE
non-controlling interests i A 1,922
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary U i [T B 2 T 28 SN E 25 (43)
New bank borrowings FIZRITIEE 12,378,865
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITEE (11,998,511)
Payment to non-controlling interests AT PR AR E (5,229)
Interest paid B E (75,862)
Dividend paid EERRESS (99,203)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEFEESEE (TR RE
financing activities F 201,308
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RekASZFEWCORD)
cash equivalents ¥ (693,706)
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BZHE&R
at 1 January ReEEY 1,573,134
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EXEE) 2 & 56,581
Cash and cash equivalents Rt+tZA=+—RAZBak
at 31 December ReEEED 12 936,009

The notes on pages 56 to 135 are an integral part of these financial statements.

BAZKRERLIA

——F+ZA=tT—HIEE

2011

HK$ 000
TR

687,003

(27,360)
(90,4393)

569,210

11,838
(31,042)

514
4,995

(13,695)

(18,755)

8,466,650
(8,336,690)
(8,419)
(103,654)

(868)

554,647

1,015,251
3,236

1,673,134

F56E 1368 2 i EM AT IEmRER 2 — 25 °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R 3R B &

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H 2 =—Z—=—F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

General Information

VST Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the distribution of information
technology (“IT”) products and the provision of enterprise systems and
IT services.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. Its principal place of business is at Unit 3312, 33th Floor, China
Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 200 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These financial statements are presented in thousands of Hong Kong
dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated. These financial statements
have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March
2013.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to the current and prior years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2012
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R R B R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 =—Z—=—F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continueq)

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis except that other financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are stated at their fair values as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 4.

The HKICPA has issued several of amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group
and the Company.

The adoption of these revised HKFRSs has no significant impact
on the financial statements of the Group for the current and prior
years.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R R Y = ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H 2 =—Z—=—F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation

(@)

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential
voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken into
account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to measure any
non-controlling interests either at fair value or at their
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable
assets.

Annual Report 2012
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #;

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation continuea)

(@)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated income statement
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling interests
and other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
balance sheet in accordance with note 2.8 depending on
the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 2.8).

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2.7), unless the investment is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # %= —
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation continuea)

(b)

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the financial
and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale). Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recorded at cost,
adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change
in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see note 2.7).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in
the consolidated income statement, whereas the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the
investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee.
For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #;

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

Associates (continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when significant influence is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see
note 2.8).

2.3 Foreign currency translation

@

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H 2 =—Z—=—F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation continueq)

(b)

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Transactions and balances (continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as
part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets such as equities classified
as available-for-sale are included in the available-for-sale
investment reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

@iy all resulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations and
other currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to equity. When a foreign operation
is sold, exchange differences that were recorded in equity
are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 =—Z—=—F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation continueq)

(c)  Group companies (continued)
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

2.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the carrying values of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
values, if any, on a straight line basis over the shorter of the
unexpired period of lease and the anticipated remaining useful
lives of the assets. The annual rates of depreciation which have
been adopted are summarised as follows:

Leasehold improvements
HEBFEE
Buildings held for own use carried at cost

BRAFNEZHEEREF
Furniture and fixtures
REREE

Office equipment

N

Computers
Eh
Motor vehicles

E
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H 2 =—Z—=—F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.4

2.5

2.6

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Property, plant and equipment (continueq)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (see note 2.7).

Gains or losses on retirement or disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amounts. These are included in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Assets under construction

Assets under construction represent property, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation and are
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any (see
note 2.7). Cost includes the costs of construction of buildings,
the costs of plant and machinery and interest charges arising
from borrowings used to finance these assets during the period
of construction or installation and testing. No provision for
depreciation is made on assets under construction until such
time as the relevant assets are completed and are available for
their intended use. When the assets concerned are brought into
use, the costs are transferred to items of property, plant and
equipment and depreciated in accordance with the policy as
stated in note 2.4 above.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in

the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # = =%

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.6

2.7

Goodwill (continued)

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 2.7).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the gain or loss on disposal.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
associate and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet been
available for use are not subject to amortisation, and are tested
at least annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss for the amount by
which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-
generating unit”). The goodwill acquired in a business
combination, for the purpose of impairment testing, is allocated
to those cash-generating units or groups of cash- generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business combination
in which the goodwill arose. The Company allocates goodwill to
groups of cash-generating units in the same geographical
location with similar principal activities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H 2 =—Z—=—F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.7 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
associate and non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an
asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit
or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the
carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units)
on a pro rata basis.

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of an
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange, the Group is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial period. At the end
of the interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of
the financial year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
goodwill are not reversed in the subsequent period. This is the
case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed only at the end of
the financial year to which the interim period relates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 =—Z—=—F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEGFTHEBE »

(continued)

2.8 Financial instruments 28 R IA

Financial assets

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets, except for assets
with maturities greater than twelve months after the balance
sheet date. These are classified as non-current assets. Loans
and receivables are classified as “trade and other receivables”
and “cash and cash equivalents” in the balance sheet (see notes
2.10and 2.11).

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets
is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that
one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated
future cash flows of that asset.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its
foreign currency and interest rate risk exposures. Embedded
derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted
for separately if the economic characteristics and risks of the
host contract and the embedded derivates are not closely
related, a separate instrument with the same terms as the
embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative,
and the combined instrument is not measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair
value; attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or
loss when incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivative
financial instruments are measured at fair value. When a
derivative financial instrument is not held for trading, and is not
designated in a qualifying hedge-relationship, all changes in its
fair value are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8

2.9

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period. Interest expense is recognised on
an effective interest basis.

Inventories

Inventories comprise IT products for distribution and are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined using weighted average cost formula. The
cost of finished goods comprises all costs of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. It excludes borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

When inventories are sold,
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down
of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or
loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of

the carrying amount of those

inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEGFTHEBE »

(continued)

2.10 Trade and other receivables 210 E B Kk H fib fE Y X8

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts,
except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables
are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts. Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are
recognised when there is objective evidence that the Group will
not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments
are considered indicators that the receivable is impaired. The
amount of impairment loss is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate where the effect of
discounting is material.

Impairment losses for trade receivables within trade and other
receivables whose recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote are recorded using an allowance account. Where the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade receivables directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash
flow statement.
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VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Repurchase of shares

When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the
amount of the consideration paid, which includes directly
attributable costs is recognised as a deduction from equity.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value
less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

2.15Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEGFTHEBE »

(continued)

2.15Income tax (continued) 215 iS58 (#)

Current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries and associates operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax retuns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. However, the deferred tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax assets
are realised or the deferred tax liabilities are settled. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. The carrying amount of
a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.16 Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

(@  Pension obligations

The Group operates defined contribution plans, the assets
of which are held in separate trustee-administered funds.
The retirement plans are generally funded by payments
from employees and by the relevant group companies. For
employees in the PRC, the Group participates in defined
contribution retirement schemes organised by the relevant
local governments in the PRC.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expenses when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or
a reduction in the future payments is available.

(b)  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

(c)  Bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses taking into account the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2012
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 =—Z—=—F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.16 Employee benefits (continuea)

@

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the trinomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted.

Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On the vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained earnings).

2.17 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEETHEHEw

(continued)

2.17 Provisions and contingent liabilities continueq) Q17T BERIAREE @

74

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

2.18 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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(@)  Operating leases @ KEHE
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and REEEZERHE SR

rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

(b)  Finance leases

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised
at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value
of the leased property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # = =%

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.18 Leases (continued)

(b)  Finance leases (continued)

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the
finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
borrowings. The interest element of the lease payments is
charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance
leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of
the asset and the lease term. Impairments losses are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as
set out in note 2.7.

2.19 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H 2 =—Z—=—F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

()

(i)

(i)

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Sale of goods

Sale of goods is recognised when products have been
delivered to the customers which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the products and
the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Service fees
Fees from service maintenance contracts are recognised
over the period of the contract.

Project revenue

Revenue on projects is recognised in the income statement
based on the percentage of completion method, measured
by reference to the percentage of contract costs incurred
to date to estimated total contract costs for the contract.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEGFTHEBE »

(continued)
2.21 Dividend distribution 221 RE 2Kk
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is MARRBREDRZBREEES
recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the period in HEGPHEEmMS) RE IR
which the dividends are approved by the directors (for interim HHOE(RKREBREmME)KEZ
dividends) or approved by the shareholders (for final dividends). HERTBRENERSARG -
2.22 Related parties 2.22 BAE
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is @ HEATEBERT EALHE
related to the Group if that person: MBRENK B EAEEE M
iE
() has control or joint control over the Group; () AT ek A AR &
;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HAEBBEEATLE
775 8%
(i)  is a member of the key management personnel of iy AAKEIAEETAR
the Group or the Group’s parent. ANEEBEIEAB -
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following ) FEUTEMMBRT XEB
conditions applies: PR R [H A e E
) The entity and the Group are members of the same () ZEBERASEHYER
Group (which means that each parent, subsidiary —SEMKE QA (A
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others). ~AE-WBAR KRR
AMBARISEERH
) o
(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy EEBRS EEMOE
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a EARHE® QA (s
member of a Group of which the other entity is a F—ERBAKERAH
member). REBKE QR M E
ANEIHAERT) -
(iiy  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third iy MRELHBR-—F=
party. FTHEERA -
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.22 Related parties (continueq)

(b)  (continued)
(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(v The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2012
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 =—Z—=—F+=-_A=+—HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management program focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise

potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in various countries and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to Chinese Renminbi
(“RMB”), the United States Dollar (‘US$”), Singapore Dollar
(“S$”), Thai Baht (“THB”) and Indonesian Rupiah (“RP”).
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations.

To manage the foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities, the Group uses foreign currency forward
contracts to reduce foreign exchange risk. As at 31
December 2012, the Group had outstanding foreign
currency forward contracts with a notional amount of
approximately HK$697,236,000 (2011: approximately
HK$627,620,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H 2 =—Z—=—F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continuea)

(@)

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

A 5% strengthening of HK$ against financial assets and
liabilities denominated in the following currencies other
than the functional currencies of the Group’s entities at 31
December 2012 would have increased/(decreased) the
post-tax profit in income statement of the Group and the
Company by the amounts shown below. This analysis
assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant. The analysis has been performed on the
same basis as for the year ended 31 December 2011.

3.

BHERARBEERERAFE

(%)

3.1

B E R R ZE 8

()

RMB AR
Us$ EY

S$ N3 T
THB B

RP ENE&E

A 5% weakening of HK$ against the above currencies
would have had the equal but opposite effect on the above
currencies to the amounts shown above, on the basis that
all other variables remain constant.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates and the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets except for the cash and cash equivalents, details of
which have been disclosed in note 12. The Group’s
exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly attributable
to its bank borrowings, details of which have been
disclosed in note 18. Borrowings carried at floating rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # = =%

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continuea)

(b)

Interest rate risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2012, if the interest rates on bank
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit
for the year would have been HK$18,962,000 (2011:
HK$15,653,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest expense on floating rate bank borrowings.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables and
cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated
balance sheet represents the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to its financial assets. The
exposures to these credit risks are closely monitored on an
ongoing basis by established credit policies and
procedures.

Cash and cash equivalents are mainly deposited in various
financial institutions, which management believes are of
high quality. Management does not expect any loss from
non-performance by these counterparties.

The Group has put in place policies to ensure that sales of
products are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history and the Group performs periodic credit evaluations
of its customers. The Group’s historical experience in
collection of trade receivables falls within the recorded
allowances. The Group has no significant concentrations
of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding from an
adequate amount of credit facilities. The Group’s treasury
department maintains flexibility in funding by keeping credit
lines available.

3.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H 2 =—Z—=—F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. MEREKREERAFE

(continued)) (%)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 HEREREZE®
(d)  Liquidity risk (continued) A iR k)
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s EREREHRASEEER
liquidity reserve, which comprises undrawn facilities and REERBHEEG (BERER
cash and cash equivalents, on the basis of expected cash MEUNRRERBESEED)
flows. The table below analyses the Group’s and the REBEN  TRAELAEH
Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity RARARHMBEABEEREREER
groupings based on the remaining period at the balance HENIEMBEER T EES
sheet to the contractual maturity date. HEEBEBHANNDT -
Between Between
Less than 1and 2and After
Total 1 year 2 years 5 years 5years
it -ER -FEWME WMEZLE BBLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHAT FHAT THEx THx THx
Group byt
As at 31 December 2012 R-ZZE--%+-F=+-H
Bank borrowings RITREE 2,335,023 1,554,619 24,152 742,484 13,768
Finance lease liabilties HEHEER 710 564 146 - -
Trade and other payables BHREMEMNFE 4,265,934 4,265,934 - - -
As at 31 December 2011 R-E--%+-R=+-H
Bank borrowings BRIEE 1,922,182 1,205,571 667,965 31,318 17,328
Finance lease liabilities REHERR 1,758 999 759 - -
Trade and other payables Z5REMmENTE 3,731,628 3,731,628 - - -
Company NG|
As at 31 December 2012 R-ZE-“5+-A=1+-H
Other payables and accruals H it fEf 2B R et RO 30 30 - - -
As at 31 December 2011 W-8--£+-A=+-H
Other payables and accruals B e 5B & EE 5B 86 86 - - -
3.2 Capital risk management 32 EXERER
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard KEBEEE é $ Z B M AERA
the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to EEEHELE  AREHRNMER
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other B A5 B A 5 *ﬁ BEER - R
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to AR E RNZRE LUK E KKK -

reduce the cost of capital.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # = =%

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. MERKREERD

Bt 75 R R B R (&)

——F+ZA=tT—HIEE

P

(continued)) (%)
3.2 Capital risk management (ontinued) 32 EXERERE#®
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group ﬁ”ﬂ#i:ﬂ”é{$ S AEE K
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return CHABERNBRENRESE LT
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce BREEAD R - BT D I
debt. EEENREER -
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt/equity AEBIRFAE oL RERE
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Ko Zb RIZEHE FHEK LB
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including current and DA E - EHIFERLEE(BRRE
non-current borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance BAEEEABRAMTHRE &I
sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Equity is calculated as RBEE)REESRESEEDT
shown in the consolidated balance sheet. MR AEAERBRITE
g o
The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure as at 31 TROAMAEBR T —Z—_F+
December 2012: ZA=+—HH é% 8
2012 2011
—E—_F —F——
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FET
Total borrowings (Note 18) BB R (ME18) 2,266,597 1,870,974
Less: Cash and cash equivalents BRERREEED
(Note 12) (Ktat12) (936,009) (1,573,134)
Net debt BEIEF 5 1,330,588 297,840
Total equity Y i 3,234,682 2,797,229
Net debt/equity ratio FEE EmLE 0.41 0.11
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 NEEME
The fair values of trade and other receivables, cash and cash B NEMERZE Be MBS
equivalents, trade and other payables and borrowings are LB ESREMEMREBEUR
assumed to approximate their carrying amounts due to the short- BE 7% NEHRNIHMNEERE

term maturities of these assets and liabilities.

B HEAVEARESEEREE
& e

BAZKRERLIA ——FFRH
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H 2 =—Z—=—F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. MEREKREERAFE

(continued)) (%)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AV {EMEF @

84

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is
determined by using the forward exchange rates at the balance
sheet date and comparing them to the contractual rates. The fair
value of borrowings is estimated as the present value of future
cash flows, discounted at current market interest rates for similar
financial institutions.

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2012 and 31
December 2011.

Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of financial
instruments measured at fair value at the balance sheet date
across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in
HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value
of each financial instrument categorised in its entirety based on
the lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value
measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

SMNEEHANNRFERURE
ERAMEMERREEESNE
Ry mimEE - BEOHDFERBG
RAXRRERELBUSREE
MIRITHIZH RN IR(E -

AREENTREIER -

AAFEIERZEMIEA
TREJINREEDETEVBR
SENETHRSMIA : HEMRA
FEZRANVPERB=EBRT AR
FTEFEZEMIAZE@E
MEEMIAZAFEURGZA
FEFAEBERZHEERER®H A
BEMERSE - AREZERN
T

. Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using quoted . F—EBEX(ZEER): LA
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial [ € & T A /)% 88 5 P i
instruments BRCREAB)FEQTE

o Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active
markets for similar financial instruments, or using valuation
techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data

Annual Report 2012
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R R B R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 =—Z—=—F+=-_A=+—HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. MEEKREERAFE

(continued)

(%)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continueq) 3.3

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(@)

Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)
° Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using valuation
techniques in which any significant input is not based on

observable market date

Level 1
EF-—EBR
HK$’000
FHERT

YNSEEERE e )

AR ERz2/ T A @)

« EZEREEER)
R (R o B A A BRI )
i 3 LA AT B TS B R )
SHEATE

Group

wE
Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-EBR E=ZER &t

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FEET  FER

As at 31 December 2012

RZZE—=—F+=-A=+—H

Liabilities =R
Forward foreign exchange & B 4N FE & 49
contracts — 51,273 — 51,273
As at 31 December 2011 R-_ZT——F+-A=+—H
Liabilities =R
Forward foreign exchange i Hi 4N & & 49
contracts — 17,734 — 17,734

Estimated write-down of inventories to net )

realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value based

on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Write-downs

of inventories are recorded where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be realised.

The identification of write-downs requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of
inventories and write-downs of inventories in the period in which

such estimate has been changed.

4, BEEGIHAE RHE

5T 17 & MUR = 7] & 1%
(]

AR EREERATRRE 2T
iR 17 98 25 W RUF (B - R
TEREBTRRERR L EN
S REE - AG T EHOAA
BE o

a8k ) Rk 78 e PR K B K fh EE - fiW TR
HAENRRAEMGS AHEESE
FEZMGTHREPHRHMZEFE
FRE B R T E MR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R R Y = ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H 2 =—Z—=—F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(continued)

(b) Estimated provision for impairment of trade
receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables. Provisions are applied to trade receivables where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible.

The identification of impairment of trade receivables requires the
use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of trade receivables and impairment loss in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.

(c) Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
note 2.7. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates (see note 6).

In assessing the value-in-use of the goodwill, management
considers changes in economic conditions and makes
assumptions regarding estimated future cash flows and other
factors. Estimates of future cash flows are highly subjective and
judgements are based on the Group’s experience and knowledge
of operations. These estimates can be significantly impacted by
many factors including changes in business and economic
conditions, operating costs, inflation and competition.

(d) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2012
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R R B R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 =T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

5. Property, Plant and Equipment 5. M¥ BERKE

Group &
Building held
Leasehold for own use Furniture Office Motor  Assets under
improvements  carried at cost and fixtures  equipment Computers vehicles  construction Total
ERAIIEN
HENELE BFEEREFT KAREE BOLERE B RE HREE @it
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER FTER TER
As at 1 January 2011 —T——%—H—H
Cost EXZME 12,726 67,701 9,278 9,490 27,811 8,309 6,568 141,883
Accumulated depreciation e (5,859 (2,800) (1,970) (5,293) (7,926) (2,140 — (25,988)
Net book amount FHFE 6,867 64,901 7,308 4197 19,885 6,169 6,568 115,895
Year ended 31 December 2011 EHZE_B——4
+ZA=+-BLFE
Opening net book amount FNREFE 6,867 64,901 7,308 4197 19,885 6,169 6,568 115,895
Additions RE 4,308 3,169 3,646 2,326 8,753 768 8,072 31,042
Transfer B 3,076 — 2,080 588 5874 - (11,618) -
Disposals HeE (440) - (31) (64) 873) (297) - (1,705)
Depreciation & (2,569) (1,401) (1,867) (1,463) (7,527) (1,692) - (16519
Exchange difference EXEE (135) (@] (335) (134) (500) 19 (235) (1,362)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 11,107 66,665 10,801 5,450 25,612 4,929 2,787 127,351
As at 31 December 2011 and —E——%+-H
1 January 2012 E‘\‘ AR=Z—-=F
—A—H
Cost K AE 17,570 70,822 13,596 11,734 34,324 8,564 2,787 159,397
Accumulated depreciation 2EtE (6,463) (4,157) (2,795) (6,284) 8,712 (3,635) - (32,046)
Net book amount EEFE 11,107 66,665 10,801 5,450 25,612 4,929 2,787 127,351
Year ended 31 December 2012 HZE-ZT——4%
+ZA=+—-HALEE
Opening net book amount FNREFE 11,107 66,665 10,801 5,450 25,612 4,929 2,787 127,351
Additions NE 577 - 2,304 1,202 6,694 633 2,391 13,801
Transfer B 1,211 - 658 - 2,912 — (4,781) —
Disposals & - - 32) (62) (279) 37) (236) (646)
Depreciation FE (2,981) (1,469) (2,295) (1,696) (9,154) (1,759) - (19,354)
Exchange difference ERERE 221 40 352 143 887 34 47) 1,630
Closing net book amount FRERFE 10,135 65,236 11,788 5,037 26,672 3,800 114 122,782
As at 31 December 2012 NRZT——F
+=ZA=+-8
Cost KA E 19,895 71,071 14,528 12,049 38,718 8,986 114 165,361
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (9,760) (5,835) (2,740) (7,012) (12,046) (5,186) - (42,579)
Net book amount EmFE 10,135 65,236 11,788 5,037 26,672 3,800 114 122,782
The net book value of property, plant and equipment under finance ®EEMHEE T 2ME  WE k& —E—=
leases as at 31 December 2012 was HK$1,343,000 (2011: ¢+_H:+—Hmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂmm%%ﬁ
HK$2,165,000). (ZZF——4 2,165,000/ ) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H 2 =—Z—=—F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

. a
5. Property, Plant and Equipment continueq 5. ¥ -BERRE
Company PN
Motor vehicles
RE
HK$’000
FHET
As at 1 January 2011 R—ZFT——F—HF—H
Cost DN 1,008
Accumulated depreciation REHIE (666)
Net book amount REFE 1,332
Year ended 31 December 2011 BE-_Z——F+_-_A=1+—HBILFE
Opening net book amount FYIREFEE 1,332
Depreciation e (400)
Closing net book amount FRIE®EFE 932
As at 31 December 2011 and R—ZFE——F+_A=+—H8B K
1 January 2012 —E-—_fF—-—H—H
Cost KA B 1,998
Accumulated depreciation REIE (1,066)
Net book amount REFE 932
Year ended 31 December 2012 BHEZZT——HF+-A=1T—HLFE
Opening net book amount FEYREFE 932
Depreciation b= (399)
Closing net book amount FAREEFE 533
As at 31 December 2012 R-ZE——F+-_A=+—H
Cost K AE 1,998
Accumulated depreciation RETITE (1,465)
Net book amount REFE 533
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R R B R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 =—Z—=—F+=-_A=+—HILFE

Goodwill 5=
Group

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Goodwill S 339,756 327,689
As at 1 January Hn—A—H 327,689 330,370
Exchange difference fE 5 =% 12,067 (2,681)
As at 31 December wR+=—A=+—H 339,756 327,689

Goodwill is allocated to groups of cash generating units (“‘CGUs”) in the
same geographical location with similar principal activities. The
recoverable amount of each group of CGUs is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. Cash flow projections for the purpose of the
impairment review are based on budgets prepared on the basis of
assumptions reflective of the prevailing market conditions. Key
assumptions used for value-in-use calculations include:

(@  Cash flows are projected based on actual operating results and
the five-year business plan.

(b)  The anticipated annual revenue growth rate included in the cash
flow projections is 10% (2011: 10%).

(c)  Apre-tax discount rate as at 31 December 2012 of 7.6% (2011: 7.6%)
was applied in determining the recoverable amount of the CGUs.
The discount rate used reflects the risk-free rate and the premium
for specific risks relating to the business units.

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s
assessment of future trends in the IT industry and are based on both
external sources and internal sources and both past performance
(historical data) and its expectations for market development.

Group management believes that any reasonably possible changes in
the above key assumptions applied are not likely to cause the
recoverable amount to be materially lower than the carrying amount of
goodwill.

MBS SEZR R AFEEBHAUN
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H 2 =—Z—=—F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

7. Investments in Subsidiaries

7. REBLARZRE

Company
N
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TE T FET
Investments at cost A KA
— Shares listed in Singapore — E# g EmikHm 1,218,903 1,218,903
— Unlisted investments, at cost —JELHEE LKA E 174,995 174,995
1,393,898 1,393,898

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 are as

RZB——E+_A=+—HZIEWER

follows: Rz HEmMT -
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and Particulars of issued share interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
AL BERITRE S FEERE DL
8 R 3 i Bh FTEXEBRKE MR HEMEARFE BHE i
(Bt z%)
VST Group Limited British Virgin Investment holding, 4 ordinary shares of 100% —
Islands British Virgin Islands US$1 each
BEHEEBERAF BEERHE REER 4Pk G E A 100% —
ERERHS 1ETZ EBR
Shenzhen VST Grand PRC Distribution of IT products RMB100,000,000 100% —
Electronic Co., Ltd. in the PRC
RINEBHEERES Hh B RAEBESHEHER A R #100,000,000 7T 100% -
BRRQA] RHLE m
VST Computers (H.K.) Hong Kong Distribution of IT 2 ordinary shares of — 100%
Limited products in Hong Kong HK$1 each
BHEMK(EE) HE REBDHEA 2R E - 100%
BRRQA RHRE 1Bz &R

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2012

62,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares
of HK$1 each
62,000,000 &
REEIETZ
BIERBERTERG



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R R B R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 =—Z—=—F+=-_A=+—HILFE

7. Investments in Subsidiaries continued) 7. RMBRARZRE @
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and Particulars of issued share interest held

Name establishment place of operations capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
MR BRITRA FEERE DL
=L X 3 it Bh FTEERRKSE HEMERFE HiE i
(Bt 7)
Chong Qing VST Grand PRC Distribution of IT US$5,000,000 — 100%
Technology products in the PRC
Development Co., Ltd
BEEREAEARK o B P Bl 3B 5,000,000% 7© - 100%
ERBERDA RHE
It REFEEEERR PRC Distribution of IT RMB10,000,000 — 100%
BRAF products in the PRC
I RELEERE o E R BEDHEM A R #10,000,0007T - 100%
BRAA RBHRE m
ECS Holdings Limited Singapore Investment holding and 365,360,174 ordinary 89.53% —
distribution of IT shares of $$0.3088
products, provision of each

IT services and
enterprise systems

in Singapore
EARRKBRAA N RN B REEA - 365,360,174 % 89.53% -
DIHE AR EM B AR ME0.3088
1R E R IR T2 EEk
MR
EC Sure Holdings Thailand Investment holding in 196,000 preferred shares, —  89.44%
(Thailand) Co., Ltd Thailand non-accumulative
dividend, Baht 1.25 per
share; and 204,000
ordinary shares,
Baht 1.25 per share
EC Sure Holdings el REBHEREER 196,000 (% & f% T & —  89.44%
(Thailand) Co., Ltd 1.25% 8k 2 BT

JEZEAR S ¢ 5&204,000 4%
SREE15FEGk
LB
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R AR BT R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H 2 =—Z—=—F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

7.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Investments in Subsidiaries continueq)

Place of

incorporation/ Principal activities and

7. RMBRARZRE @

Particulars of issued share

Percentage of
interest held

Name establishment place of operations capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
MR BRITRAE sz L
£ X 3 it Bh FTEERRKSE M EARFE HiE =
(Kt &t)
The Value Systems Thailand Provider of information 7,783,000 shares of —  89.53%
Co., Ltd technology products 10 Baht each
and services for IT
infrastructure in Thailand
The Value Systems R TR E AR E M M 7,783,000 % —  89.53%
Co., Ltd EHREE €2 i BREE10R%
AR 75 FE 7 3%
ECS Vietnam Company  Vietnam Trading of information and  US$100,000 —  89.53%
Limited communications
technology products
and services in Vietnam
ECS Vietnam Company i f3 REEREERR 100,000% 7T —  89.53%
Limited WA ERR
AR 75 32 5
ECS Computers (Asia)  Singapore Provider of information 18,600,000 ordinary —  89.53%
Pte. Ltd technology products shares of S$1 each
and services for IT
infrastructure
in Singapore
ECS Computers (Asia) 7 03 N E AR E R 13,600,000 A% & % HE (& —  89.53%
Pte. Ltd REMB R ER LB 1ETINE T 2 E R
Bk 75 e 7
Pacific City (Asia Pacific) Singapore Retail of information 150,000 ordinary shares of —  89.53%
Pte Ltd technology products, S$1 each
IT equipment and
accessories in
Singapore
Pacific City (Asia Pacific) ¥ i # RRET AN A F 150,000 % —  89.53%
Pte Ltd BB RER - GREE1HME T
BB E R 2 ERK
=&
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R R B R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 =—Z—=—F+=-_A=+—HILFE

7. Investments in Subsidiaries continued) 7. RMBRARZRE @
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and Particulars of issued share interest held

Name establishment place of operations capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
S AL S BRITRA FEERE DL

=L B SL i Bh TEXBRKE MR HEMERFE HiE i
(Bt 7)

Isan System Pte Ltd. Singapore Provision and distribution 2 ordinary shares of —  89.53%

of information technology ~ S$1 each
products and general
trading of IT equipment

in Singapore
Isan System Pte Ltd. T h03 FET D% 1R 4 2 5 4 2R REE —  89.53%
BB EERR 1IN T 2 AR
ME—MRAEMEBI
BEE 5
ECS Enterprise Solutions Singapore Distribution of information 5,000,000 ordinary shares —  89.53%
Pte Ltd technology products of S$1 each

and services for IT
infrastructure in

Singapore
ECS Enterprise Solutions %7 i 3 REFTINE D EEMEE  5,000,0000% &k EHE —  89.53%
Pte Ltd EmRkEEEME 1T N3 T 2 B AR
EL T 5% 1 AR 75
ECS Technology Hong Kong Investment holding, 11,500,000 ordinary shares —  89.53%
(China) Limited provider of information of HK$1 each

technology products
and services for
IT infrastructure

in Hong Kong
ECS Technology e BREZER BEEA 11,500,000 % & % [ (& —  89.53%
(China) Limited R EE an R B A RHL 1B EBR
R i AR 5 e
ECS Technology PRC Provider of information US$10,000,000 —  89.53%
(Guangzhou) technology products
Company Limited and services for IT
infrastructure in the PRC
ECS Technology e FEEMBHREMRR 10,000,000 7T —  89.53%
(Guangzhou) BB E MR
Company Limited AR 75 1 FE 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R R Y = ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H 2 =—Z—=—F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

7. Investments in Subsidiaries continued) 7. RMBRARZRE»
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and Particulars of issued share interest held

Name establishment place of operations capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
HEMmEZ BRITRAS FEEsEaE L
£18 X 3L i B TEEBRRKE W EREARFS HiE 3
(B z#)
ECS Technology PRC Provider of information US$1,282,000 —  89.53%
Company Limited technology products

and services for IT
infrastructure in the PRC

ECS Technology H PREMBMEERK 1,282,000 3 T —  89.53%
Company Limited BB EREE
Pl 75 £ FE 7
ECS (Shanghai) PRC Provider of information US$25,000,000 —  89.53%
Management Co., Ltd technology products

and services for IT
infrastructure in the PRC

ECS (Shanghai) e BB AR E M & 25,000,000 J© —  89.53%
Management Co., Ltd BB B E
PR 75 14 & 7
ECS China Technology  PRC Provider of information US$15,000,000 —  89.53%
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd technology products

and services for IT
infrastructure in the PRC

ECS China Technology FEE AR Em R 15,000,000 7© —  89.53%
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd BB ERRE
PR 7% e
ECS Beijing Chuang PRC Provider of information US$1,000,000 —  89.53%
Yue Technology technology products
Co., Ltd and services for [T
infrastructure in the PRC
ECS Beijing Chuang H B BB E m & 1,000,000 7T —  89.53%
Yue Technology BB ARG
Co., Ltd AR 75 it FE 7
ECS Chongqing PRC Electronic settlement US$10,000,000 —  89.53%
Marketing & Payment business centre and
Co., Ltd provider of information

technology products
and services for IT
infrastructure in PRC

ECS Chongaing HE PEEFEE™BH L 10,000,000% 7T —  89.53%
Marketing & Payment REARRE®
Co., Ltd NE MR R AR
AR TS L B R
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R R B R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 =—Z—=—F+=-_A=+—HILFE

Investments in Subsidiaries continueq)

Place of

incorporation/ Principal activities and

7. RMBRARZRE

Percentage of

Particulars of issued share interest held

Name establishment  place of operations capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
A ERITRE FEEEEI L
£ X 3 it Bh FTEEBREE I HEMERFE HiE &
(Kt &t)
EIT Info-tech Limited Hong Kong Provider of information 1 ordinary share of —  89.53%
technology products US$5,000,000
and services for IT
infrastructure in
Hong Kong
EIT Info-tech Limited B BB ABRE M & 1 EE —  89.53%
B AR R E R 5,000,000 7T 2 & i@ ik
PR 75 £ rE
ECS Technology (HK) Hong Kong Provider of information 10 ordinary shares of —  89.583%
Co., Limited technology products US$1,000,000 each
and services for [T
infrastructure in
Hong Kong
ECS Technology (HK) & /& BEBEMBMRER R 100X Z AR E B —  89.53%
Co., Limited B AR R E T R 1,000,000 7T 2 & i ik
PR 75 £ pE
ECS Indo Pte. Ltd Singapore Distributor of information 2,524,785 ordinary shares, —  79.84%
technology products issued and paid up
in Singapore capital: US$1,615,392
ECS Indo Pte. Ltd s Nk & AR E 2,524,785/ 2 1T & —  79.84%
DR BRI EmAR
1,615,392% T
PT ECS Indo Jaya Indonesia Distributor of information 100,000 ordinary shares of —  79.84%
technology products US$1 each
in Indonesia
PT ECS Indo Jaya Efe HJe & BHR E m 100,000 % & i H & —  79.84%
bak k=] 13T 2 Eimk
ECS Infocom (Phils) Singapore Investment holding 2 ordinary shares of —  89.583%
Pte. Ltd in Singapore S$1 each
ECS Infocom (Phils) 7N REMEREREZER 2KREREE1FHMNET —  89.53%
Pte. Ltd 2 &Rk
Note: Bt et -

All subsidiaries are limited liability companies except for those established in the
PRC, which are wholly-owned foreign enterprises.

BRPBRIOBRRRIIEEEDLEIN

FENBARYRERATE -

BAZRERIA —T-—FFH
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R AR BT R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H 2 =—Z—=—F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

T =1 =%,
8. Amount Due to a Subsidiary 8. BEH B A RMIE
The amount due to a subsidiary of HK$230,695,000 (2011: JE 1] FfY /8 A &) 5% 1H 230,695,000/ T (=
HK$173,594,000) is unsecured, interest-free, denominated in HK$ and T ——1F : 173,594,000 7T) B 4 -
is repayable on demand. BE BT ERERERIERE -
9. Interest in Associates 9. REBERQNTANER
Group
TE
2012 2011
—EB-—C—F —_F2——%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET
Unlisted F¥EH
Share of net assets DIEFEE 66,406 55,272
Loan to an associate MEEE DT ER 3,493 3,498
69,899 58,770
Listed outside Hong Kong EBUNELET
Share of net assets DIEFEE 240,273 218,277
310,172 277,047
Market value of listed shares EmRETE 194,732 150,857
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R R B R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 =—Z—=—F+=-_A=+—HILFE

Interest in Associates (ontinueq)

Details of the associates as at 31 December 2012 are as follows:

9. REEENTNER

R+ A=+—AMKHELR

RSO
Country of Particulars of issued Equity interest held by
Name incorporation Principal activities shares held the Group
28 AMRIER FTEXEH FEeRTRAFE rEBEFRF2RE
2011
MSI-ECS Phils., Inc  Philippines Distribution of IT products 3,097,055 ordinary 49.99%
shares of Peso
100 each
MSI-ECS Phils., Inc ~ JE# & DHEMBRER 3,097,055 % B I HE (&
100 &= 2 i@k
ECS ICT Berhad Malaysia Provision of information 180,000,000 ordinary 41%
technology shares of RM0.5 each
and services for
IT infrastructure
in Malaysia
ECSICT Berhad HoRATE REREEE AR K 180,000,000 %
2R E AR R BREESFE 2
AR 7 =g il
The loan to an associate is denominated in US$ and is unsecured, MEtE AR ERAEITEE - L ARK

interest-free and not expected to be recovered within one year.

The summarised financial information of the associates as at 31

December 2012 are as follows: B EERB AT
Group
AEH
2012 2011
—EB—C—F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Assets BE 1,549,259 1,314,486
Liabilities aE (823,401) (664,539)
Equity Eam 725,858 649,947
Revenue s 5,025,995 4,793,988
Profit il 90,250 93,178
BHERERLIE T -FFW®
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R AR BT R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H 2 =—Z—=—F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

10. Trade and Other Receivables 10 EZREMERIRE
Group Company
AEE AAH

2012
—E—_—F
HK$’000
FTET

Trade receivables, net B 5 WA TR 4,547,481
Other receivables and H o JE U FRIB &

prepayments A1 A 778,558
Deferred expenses IEER X

(Note 16(e)) (K72 16(e)) 33,830

5,359,869

Less: Non-current A FEBNEA

deferred expenses IE IR X

(Note 16(g)) (Kt & 16()) (19,432)

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade and other
receivables as the Group has large number of customers and
counterparties.

The Group grants credit period to third party customers ranging from 7
to 150 days, which may be extended for selected customers
depending on their trade volume and settlement history with the Group.
The ageing analysis of net trade receivables by invoice date is as

3,429,086

4,062,952

5,340,437 4,043,098

2011 2012 2011

T el T F
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

TET FTET TR

599,104

34,762

(19,854)

HRAKRBBEAEEFPRXRZHT &
AEENE S REMEKFIAL EEP
FEERE -

AEBGRTE=ZNTEPZEEHNF7
E1500 MEMNEF ZEEHA FIE
E RIFRFEAEEZIHERNK
LEME - BHRERBFEREREA

follows: BT ZRBR T

Group

A%
2012 2011
—B-C-F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
0-30 days 0&30H 2,776,194 2,220,954
31-60 days 31260H 1,143,077 601,529
61-90 days 61290H 231,655 226,079
Over 90 days @0 R 396,555 380,524

4,547,481 3,429,086
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R R B R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 =—Z—=—F+=-_A=+—HILFE

10. Trade and Other Receivables continueo) 10 ES R HAMEWRRIE
As at 31 December 2012, trade receivables of HK$889,053,000 (2011: RZE—=ZF+ZA=+—H B2
HK$864,361,000), which were fully performing, were past due but not B 17 M & 5 FE Uk 3% 78889,053,000/5 TT
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for (== —— 4 : 864,361,000/ 7T ) E 1 &
whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these BERE ZEREEAZEZBIE,E
trade receivables by due date is as follows: M RERLTEENLE - ZFEH

JEWF BB BB EITHERR ST
T
Group
rEH
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%F
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FiET
0-30 days 0£30H 552,892 537,482
31-60 days 31260H 180,997 145,207
61-90 days 61%290H 60,630 65,857
Over 90 days @90 H 94,534 115,815
889,053 864,361
As at 31 December 2012, trade receivables of HK$196,707,000 (2011: RZTE—ZF+ZA=+—H BHE
HK$148,280,000) were impaired and full provision has been made. The I 5% 18 196,707,000/8 (= & — — & -
ageing analysis of these receivables by invoice date is as follows: 148,280,000 L) E R E W EEH 2
HEE ZFRERRFBREZEEET
BERER D AT T
Group
TEE

2012 2011

—E——fF —E——fF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

0-90 days 0&90H 8,443 13,359
Over 90 days @90 H 188,264 134,921

196,707 148,280
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R AR BT R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H 2 =—Z—=—F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

10. Trade and Other Receivables continue) 10.

Movements on the provision for trade receivables are as follows:

EFRHEMEWKIE®
B mUTERENEBMT ;

Group

AEE
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET

148,280 94,885
46,910 57,435

(1,457) (4,249)
2,974 209

As at 1 January n—H—H

Provision Ec g

Receivables written off during the F A 8 A T A] IR |l /Y
year as uncollectible JE W R T8

Exchange difference ME i =5

As at 31 December Rn+=ZA=+—8

196,707 148,280

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables were denominated
in the following currencies:

Group
rE

2012

B 5 % £ fth MO8 B M O T
SHE -

Company
N
2011 2012 2011

N Nl T T s T %

HK$’000

FHE T

HK$ BT 4,119
RMB AR 2,614,441
S$ N3 ot 274,596
Us$ X 1,558,636
THB B 784,982
RP HREE 103,663

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables approximate their
fair values due to their short-term maturities.

The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the balance sheet date is

the carrying value of the trade and other receivables above. The Group
did not hold any collateral as security.
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2,168,641

5,340,437 4,043,098

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

THETT FTET TAETT

4,129

302,219
939,250
602,438

26,421

HRERNEHAIE RESREME
WHREMREEEE A FEMES -

REERNEREERRAEMRES R
Hith B U TR R BREE » A 5 B3 B 55
BEMERRERSER-



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R R B R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 =—Z—=—F+=-_A=+—HILFE

. f=v] =,

10. Trade and Other Receivables continueq 10 ES R HAMEWRRIE
The credit quality of trade and other receivables that are neither past EaBTURENE S MHE M ERFIEN
due nor impaired has been assessed by reference to historical FEEERDNSEXHIHFNRTENEK
information about counterparty default rates. The existing counterparties BRI H - -RBERSGHEFATLEEX
have not had significant defaults in the past. BA -

. 4
11. Inventories "N 78
Group
rE
2012 2011
—E—_fF —_EF——%F
HK$°000 HK$’'000
T FiE T
Inventories on hand held for re-sale BEEHEBEFERFE 2,205,779 1,772,795
Inventories-in-transit EEREFEE 517,324 354,525
2,723,103 2,127,320
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense is HMREEY 2 EESBE 2O E N T
shown in note 21. 21 -

12. Cash and Cash Equivalents RETRAEEEY

Group Company
rE AATE

2012 2011 2012 2011
Nl T FT s T %
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET FExT FHET
Cash at bank and in hand RITEREEFRS 924,001 1,423,214 1,123
Short-term bank deposits WHRITE R
(Note a) (Ktita)

Cash and cash equivalents HekREEEY

12,008 149,920

936,009 1,673,134
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R AR BT R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H 2 =—Z—=—F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

12. Cash and Cash Equivalents continueq NHERBEEEED »
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents were denominated ReRkBReSEMREAENTNIEES
in the following currencies: & :
Group Company
rEE KAHE

2012 2011 2012 2011
—E—_—F —T——F —ZT—_—F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FAT FHBxT FHET
HK$ BT 7,645 7,746 54

Uss$ EiH 342,898 653,680 111 33
RMB (Note b) AR (B iFb) 425,281 749,462 -
S$ s T 110,820 126,306 1,014

THB Zr 8k 30,793 32,421
RP ENfefE 18,572 3,519

936,009 1,573,134

Notes: /WE .

(@  The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 1.00% (2011: @ EHRTEFERZERSF AN E K1.00%
0.45%) per annum. These deposits have an average maturity of 9.08 days (ZE——F:045%) c ZEFRZF
(2011: 9.95 days). HEHA AIBA(ZE ——F:909

H) -

(o)  The Group’s bank balances and deposits denominated in RMB are ) ATEBUAARBHEIZRITEHRET
deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these RMB RDOTFHRRPBZRIT RBMZFUAA
denominated balances into foreign currencies and the remittance of funds REFGEZEBRRIERBESED
out of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange A 78 38 <7 R B IRAT BT AR A 2 HNEE B
control promulgated by the government of the PRC. A7 Bl RO AR o

13. Share Capital 13. R A&
2012 2011
—E—_—F —ET——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TH&T FAET
Authorised: ETE -
2,000,000,000 (2011: 2,000,000,000) 2,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each (=—=Z——4 :2,000,000,000) f%
HREECIB T2 EBR 200,000 200,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R R B R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 =—Z—=—F+=-_A=+—HILFE

13. B2 )

BETRBREZERR

13. Share Capital continueq)

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:

2012 2011
—E-—F —F——%F
Number of issued Number of issued
ordinary shares of ordinary shares of

HK$0.1 each  Par value HK$0.1 each Par value
BREEIET HREE0CIBT
ZEe BT 2 B ELT
ZERER HE =gl e 4] [EIRED
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEx FAT
As at 1 January n—A—H 1,240,656,665 124,066 1,258,888,665 125,889
Repurchase of own shares B @ X & A% {7
(Note a) (i &a) (620,000) ) (18,232,000) (1,823)
As at 31 December R+—-_A=+—H 1,240,036,665 124,004 1,240,656,665 124,066

Wit -

Notes:

@ BERAZRH

(a) Repurchase of own shares

RBE-T—=ZF+=ZA=+—8H1Lt
FE APRRRBRMEREARS KRG

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company repurchased its
own shares on the Stock Exchange as follows:

T
Number of Aggregate
ordinary shares Highest price Lowest price purchase
Month of repurchase repurchased paid per share paid per share price paid
B e [=X) g1
BmE A5 LEREA EREEER SREEER HBEER
HK$ HK$ HK$
B B b
January 2012 —E——%—H 620,000 1.06 0.97 631,420
BHEZERERLAT T ——FFRK



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H 2 =—Z—=—F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

13. BRA& %)

Kzt - ()

13. Share Capital continueq)

Notes: (continued)

BERASRE(E

(a) Repurchase of own shares (continued) (@)

RBEZFT——F+=ZA=+—A8H1Lt
FE - ARARRBRATERERG KM

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company repurchased its
own shares on the Stock Exchange as follows:

R
Number of Aggregate
ordinary shares Highest price Lowest price purchase
Month of repurchase repurchased paid per share paid per share price paid
B | eft et g2
BE A5 LTERHA BERBESER BRBEEER BBEER
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
May 2011 —ET——%HhA 570,000 1.76 1.74 996,760
October 2011 —E2——%F1+A 2,008,000 0.79 0.71 1,513,840
November 2011 —ZT——F+—A8 6,648,000 1.26 1.04 7,518,880
December 2011 —E——F+=f 9,006,000 1.10 0.88 8,725,500
18,232,000 18,754,980

The repurchased shares were cancelled and accordingly the issued share
capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value of these
shares. Pursuant to Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands, an
amount equivalent to the par value of the shares cancelled of HK$62,000
(2011: HK$1,823,000) was transferred from retained earnings to the
capital redemption reserve. The premium paid on the repurchase of the
shares of HK$569,000 (2011: HK$16,932,000) was charged to retained
earnings.

EREOROCEN MARRKE %
TR ANE B It 12 5% 55 3% 10 B0 T B B ©
RIEFASEE A RE B HER
B3 85 A% 1) T (562,000 L (—ZF — —
F:1,823,000 L) MESBEELERA
BAEREEREDFE - BREBRMHD
B X 44 (8 569,000 (ZZF ——F :
16,932,000/ 7T) E B R B A F Bk ©

(b) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the balance b) REEBRIBRARITEZERES
sheet date i
Exercise price 2012 2011
Exercise period TS TEE —B-—=fF —E——fF
20 February 2009 to —EFENF_A=-_+HZ HK$0.54 5,000,000 5,000,000
19 February 2019 —E-AFZA+ANH 0.54% 7T
17 February 2013 to —E-—=F-A++HE HK$2.672 10,200,000 10,400,000
16 February 2021 —ZE-—-F-RA+XA 26728 7T
23 March 2013 to —E-—=9=ZA=+=HZ HK$2.434 4,700,000 4,700,000
22 March 2021 —E-—F=A=+=H 2434 7T

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share of the
Company. Further details of these options are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # = =%

14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment

(@)

Share option scheme of the Company

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted
on 17 April 2002 whereby the Directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees (including both
full time and part time employees, and Executive Directors), Non-
executive Directors, suppliers, customers and other corporations
or individuals that provide support to the Group (as defined in the
share option scheme) to take up options to subscribe for shares
of the Company. The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the share option scheme
may not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company.
The subscription price is determined by the Company’s Board of
Directors and will not be less than the higher of (i) the nominal
value of the Company’s ordinary shares; (i) the closing price of
the Company’s ordinary shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer; and (iii)
the average closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of offer. The options vest ranging from O to 2 years from the
date of grant as determined by the Directors and are then
exercisable within a period of ten years (including the vesting
period, if any). Each share option gives the holders the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

No share options were grant during the year ended 31 December
2012. 10,400,000 and 4,900,000 share options were granted to
employees and directors (both executive and non-executive) on
17 February 2011 and 23 March 2011 respectively.

No option were exercised during the year ended 31 December
2012 (2011: nil).
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14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment continueq)

(@) Share option scheme of the Company (continueq)

i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows, (i)
whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of
shares for the year ended 31 December 2012:

106

Outstanding Exercisable
Lapsed as at asat  Exercise Contractual RENET )
Outstanding as at during 31 December 31 December price Vesting termof  contractual
Date of grant 1 January 2012 the year 2012 2012 (HKS) conditions options life
R=B--F R-B--F
R=B-=F +=A +=A
-A-AH RER Er=[ =t-H TRE BRE Mer
R AH fef R AT P i R AT Dikik:d (Bx) RNEH BNEH
Directors =
20 February 2009 LT NF 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 10 Years 6.14 Years
—B=+H & 105 6.14%5
23 March 2011 -5 4,700,000 4,700,000 VA CETS AR 8.23 Years
=A-t+=H from date
of grant
RGBS 104 8.23%
Bit2f
Employees EE
17 February 2011 T 10,400,000 (200,000) 10,200,000 PACETS 10 Years 8.14 Years
ZAttR from date

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2012

20,100,000

(200,000) 19,900,000

5,000,000

of grant
BREBH
B2

106

8.14%F




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R R B R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 =—Z—=—F+=-_A=+—HILFE

14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment coninvesy 14 AR B T 2R E

=+,
IH ()
(@) Share option scheme of the Company (continued) @ ArEIERESS @
(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows, iy AT AEDEREZ KRR
whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of G BE-_ZT——F+=
shares for the year ended 31 December 2011: A=+—BLFE FIEE

BREDUNED SR DEE

Outstanding Exercisable

Granted Lapsed asat asat Exercise Contractual Remaining
Outstanding as at during during the 31 December 31 December price Vesting termof  contractual
Date of grant 1 January 2011 the year year 2011 2011 (HKS) conditions options life
RZB——% RZZ——F
RZE——% +=A +=A
—A—H RER RER =+-H =t+—-B f&E Bie g
Kit B 8 B AT it Pe W AT ATaE (Br)  BEKE ANESR ANEH
Directors s
20 February 2009 =T TNF
—A=tH 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 5,000,000 0.54 Nil 10 Years  7.14 Years
Eid 106 714%
23 March 2011 —T——F — 4,900,000 (200,000 4,700,000 - 2434 2 Years 10Years  9.23 Years
—A=+=H from date
of grant
BRILAH
EatefF 104 9.23%
Employees (-1}
17 February 2011 —F——% — 10,400,000 - 10,400,000 - 2.672 2 Years 10Years  9.14 Years
—At+tRH from date
of grant
BERHAH

o Pk 106 9.14%

5,000,000 15,300,000 (200,000) 20,100,000 5,000,000
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14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment continveg 14 L,L BOXZFzERE

I (49
(@) Share option scheme of the Company (continued) @ ZAATRERESTE @
(i) Fair value of share options and assumptions (i) MEREAFELRK

The fair value of services received in return for share BRERHEREMESRE
options granted is measured by reference to the fair value ZRAFEDZERBEHER
of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of 2 RAFEE LS
the share options granted is measured based on a gtz R EMEFHIBRE=
trinomial lattice model. The contractual life of the share BEAHKEERENXGE - BRE
option is used as an input into this model. Expectations of ZENTFHAEZEXN ZER
early exercise are incorporated into the trinomial lattice AEE HIZEFRTFEZ2EH

model. M AZ =B ZhEEL -
Fair value of share options and assumption for share BREAFERRZ-Z——
options granted in 2011 are as follows: FRM A ERED ﬂgj B %J( 1l

W

2011
—2-—fF
Fair value at measurement date RErEH8ZA¥E HK$1.35
1.35%8 7T
Share price Rz & HK$2.54
2.547%8 7T
Exercise price TEE HK$2.60
2.607% 7T
Expected volatility T8 B 18 61.6%
Option life & AR HE B AR 10 years
104
Expected dividend TEHARE 4.3%
Risk-free interest rate 22 B b F & 2.8%
The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility. T8 B IR Th iR E R OK 1R 15
Expected dividends are based on historical dividends. i B AR B RR E R AR
Change in the subjective input assumptions could BEH FEH AHBERR
materially affect the fair value estimate. 28R H AL EGEETEX

BERFE-
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14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment continueq)

(b)

Share option scheme of a subsidiary — ECS
Holdings Limited (“ECS”)

The Company'’s subsidiary, ECS, has a share option scheme, the
ECS Share Option Scheme Il (“Scheme II”), which was adopted
on 13 December 2000 whereby the Directors of ECS are
authorised, at their discretion, to invite ECS’s employees and
Directors, including Non-executive Directors of ECS and its
subsidiaries (‘ECS Group”) to take up options to subscribe for
shares of ECS. The subscription price is determined by the
ECS’s Board of Directors and is set either at (i) a price equal to
the average of the last dealt price of ECS’s share for the three
consecutive trading days immediately preceding the grant of the
option (i) a discount to the market price not exceeding 20% of
the market price in respect of that option. Each share option
gives the holders the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in
ECS. The options vest after one year from the date of grant and
are then exercisable at any time after the first anniversary of the
grant date and in the case of option with exercise price set at a
discount, at any time after the second anniversary of date of
grant. Options granted to employees and Executive Directors are
exercisable up to the tenth anniversary of date of grant and those
granted to Non-executive Directors are exercisable up to the fifth
anniversary of the date of grant. The scheme will continue to be
in force at the discretion of the compensation committee of ECS,
subject to a maximum period of ten years commencing 13
December 2000.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H 2 =—Z—=—F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment coninvesy 14 AP AT 2 EH &

=h -
I ()
(b) Share option scheme of a subsidiary — ECS b MBRARERBMEBRA2

Holdings Limited (“ECS”) (continuea) A (ERBE ] WEERE

A IC )

()  The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows, ) ATARLBEREZERK
whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of GHE 2T ——F+=
shares for the year ended 31 December 2012: A=Z+—BLEE FTEE

BREHFBERINRMD
&
Outstanding as Exercised Lapsed Outstandingas Exercisableas  Exercise Contractual Remaining
at 1 January during during at 31 December at 31 December price Vesting termof  contractual

Date of grant 2012 the year the year 2012 2012 (S$)  conditions options life

RZB-ZF RZB-=f
RZB-ZF T=A T=A
Er=F Er=F TEE

REAH 5 ief R AT TFaE Gimgx)

Directors iz

150ctober 2010 =2 —% 4 1,900,000 1,900,000 1,900,000 I 1Year 5-10Years 28t07.8

+A+hHE from date Years
of grant

EELAHM  5E10F 28E78F
B E

Employees (-3}

150ctober 2010 —Z—Z & 10,950,000 (550,000) (250,000) 10,150,000 10,150,000 I 1Year 5-10Years 28t07.8

+A+hE from date Years

of grant
BEEAS  5Z108 28F7.8%
Bi1E

12,850,000 (550,000) (250,000) 12,050,000 12,050,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 =—Z—=—F+=-_A=+—HILFE

14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment continvegy 14 LJ\ BOXZFTzERE

FIE ()
(b) Share option scheme of a subsidiary — ECS (b) IiﬁJ?ES AEARABEBERL
Holdlngs Limited (“ECS”) (continued) al ([EARRE]D WERE
ﬁ &l o)
(i)  The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows, i) ATARLEREZERK
whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of THE BEZ-_ZE——F+=
shares for the year ended 31 December 2011: A=Z+—BLEE FTEE

BEGAENZNRNEER

Outstanding as Outstandingas ~ Exercisable as Exercise
at 1 January Lapsed during at 31 December at 31 December price Vesting Contractual Remaining
Date of grant 2011 the year 2011 2011 (S9) conditions  term of options  contractual life
S
RZE——F T=A T=A
—-A—H RER =+-8 =+-H 1B EiRE Fe
KHBH WA KW W ARATE AR Ginkn) 58 1 BHEH BREH
Directors =
15 October 2010 —E-ZF 1,900,000 - 1,900,000 1,900,000 0.55 1 Year from 5-10 Years 381088
+A+aA date of grant Years
BREBEH 5Z10F 38%88%
EF
Employees &8
15 October 2010 %5 11,870,000 (920,000) 10,950,000 10,950,000 0.55 1 Year from 5-10 Years 3.8108.8
+A+EB date of grant Years
BREBEH 5210F 38%88%
REF
13,770,000 (920,000 12,850,000 12,850,000
The fair value of the share options granted is measured by ERLERENAFEEDZ
reference to the ECS share price on the grant date and the EEANBERE L BN
exercise price of the share options. BERERETEETEZ-
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H 2 =—Z—=—F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment coninvesy 14 ARBP AT 2 EH &

=h .
IE (@)

(c) Share option of a subsidiary — ECS Indo Pte Ltd (“ECS (c) Ff B - FIECS Indo Pte Ltd
indo”) (TECS Indo J) 49 88 12 4 31
On 16 October 2009, ECS Indo granted 120,000 share options RZZZAF+ A+ KB ECS
to four senior employees of a subsidiary of ECS Indo. Each Indo[A1ECS Indo i | A &) B9 10 & =
option is, upon full payment of the exercise price, convertible into & B % H1120,00017 38 % # - &
one new ordinary share of ECS Indo. The options are exercisable MERERNBEHZMNITEER A
at any time within three years from the grant date and are settled i A — JXECS Indo# & @ A% - %
by physical delivery of shares. CEREARLBHEF=ZFR

AIRERSITIE - WIAB MR AR MDA
& o
The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows, whereby AT A5 R 2 R R AR
all options are settled by physical delivery of shares: MATERBRESUNEDIS KRG
HEE -
Outstanding as Lapsed Outstandingas Exercisable as Exercise Contractual
at 1 January during at 31 December at 31 December price Vesting term of
Date of grant 2012 the year 2012 2012 (US$) conditions options
R-B--% H=-B-=F
R-B-=F +=A +=A
—HA—H == ==l
REBH o RATBE AT SRR
Employees B8
15 October 2010 —E-%f 113,392 (113,392)
+A+%xA
Outstanding as Lapsed Outstandingas  Exercisable as Exercise Contractual
at1January  during the at 31 December at 31 December price Vesting term of
Date of grant 2011 year 2011 2011 (US$)  conditions options
RZZ——F RZZE——F
R-ZZ——F +ZA +=A
—A—8 RER =+—H =+—H e 8 e
=g HARLTE R HARITE AT () HEBREHF S0%H
Employees B8
15 October 2010 —E-FE 113,392 — 113,392 113,392 1.8156 Nil 3 Years
+R+ER 5 3%
The fair value of such equity-settled share-based payments was UBEHhEHezEEREZR
determined based on adjusted market comparables. FEDELEABRTH A A L ERK
JHETE °
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15. Reserves 15.

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each
component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in
the Company'’s individual components of equity between the beginning
and the end of current and prior years are set out below:

it

A 8 B 2 2 R 9 0 6 9 R G R A
BOHERNGAREEDER - AT
R I 1 )RR AR A )% B 5
287 HERIDT -

Company YNNI
Capital
Share redemption Capital Retained
premium reserve reserve earnings Total
REE EXAEERE EARGEE REBER i
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FERT FHERT FHERT FERT
(Note) (Note) (Note)
(B &) (B33 (Pt 3%
Balance as at 1 January 2011 R ——%F
—A—BMEH 774,195 2,643 1,978 267,641 1,046,457
Profit and total comprehensive F s &
income for the year 2HKRALREE — - - 61,439 61,439
Equity-settled share-based LA B 19 3 1-F
payment 2R A E IR - - 8,586 — 8,586
Repurchase of own shares & B K & iR 1D
— Par value paid —EfEE — — _ _ _
— Premium paid —BfEE - - — (16,932) (16,932)
— Transfer between reserves — 1 i e — 1,823 - (1,823) —
Balance as at 31 December 2011 A =& ——4F
+-RA=+—8H
B 45 4 774,195 4,466 10,564 310,325 1,099,550
Balance as at 1 January 2012 RZE—_F
—A—HW&E& 774,195 4,466 10,564 310,325 1,099,550
Profit and total comprehensive FNE R
income for the year 2EAEE — — 31,128 31,128
Dividend paid B’ E — - - (99,203) (99,203)
Equity-settled share-based LARR 5 32 A5 2 1
payment o5 4 ERUR - — 10,228 — 10,228
Repurchase of own shares EAEIEN i)
— Par value paid —BEfEE - - - - -
— Premium paid —BfTaE - — — (569) (569)
— Transfer between reserves — RS - 62 - (62) -
Balance as at 31 December 2012 A —F — —F
+=-A=+—H
BN 7 £ 774,195 4,528 20,792 241,619 1,041,134
Note: Hfat -

See notes to the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the nature and
purpose of reserves.

ERFEBEZHEEREN BAGEERES
R M -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H 2 =—Z—=—F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

16. Trade and Other Payables 16. EZ RHEMENKIE
Group Company
rEE b NN

2012 2011 2012 2011
S % N el - F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT TER TAT

Trade payables =Y e 3,948,459 3,398,019 =
Other payables and accruals HAbERFIB R
fEEt 1B 298,220 314,748 30 86
Deferred income (Note (e)) B A (B 2% () 43,486 42,410 =
4,290,165 3,755,177
Less: non-current W IEMBNETE WA
deferred income (Note (g)) (Kiit(e)
(24,231) (23,549) —
4,265,934 3,731,628
(@)  The Group’s suppliers grant credit periods ranging from 30 to 90 @ AEBZHERGLTAEEZE
days to the Group. The ageing analysis of trade payables is as BEHNT0EWH B 5 ENMNK
follows: HZERESTWAT :
Group
rE
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FTHEx FE T
0-60 days 0E60H 3,874,099 3,269,280
Over 60 days HBi#me0H 74,360 128,739
3,948,459 3,398,019
(o)  The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate their fair ) BERABREBRRNIE ZEEFE
values due to their short-term maturities. NREMEEEREAFERS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 =—Z—=—F+=-_A=+—HILFE

B =
16. Trade and Other Payables continued) 16. ES RHEMENSRE
(c) The carrying amounts of trade and other payables were (© B NMNEMENRTREERENT
denominated in the following currencies: §l| &5 W =
Group Company
rE KAF
2012 2011 2012 2011
CE-CF EEmblalull T — ekl
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAT FET FAET
HKS BT 9,748 15,668 86
RMB AR 1,629,880 1,409,332 —
S$ NS T 248,652 243,980 —
us$ ETT 1,893,726 1,768,261 —
THB Rk 442,493 286,925 —
RP e & 41,435 7,462 —
4,265,934 3,731,628 86
(d) Included in other payables and accruals is an amount o HboEMRBEBLEFRESES
HK$51,273,000 (2011: HK$17,734,000) which relates to foreign ¥651,273,0008 L (=& — — 4 :
exchange forward contracts. The notional amount of foreign 17,734,000 L) + 5B B R B
exchange forward contracts has been disclosed in note 3.1(a). M4 - RERSMNES AN EEER

Bf3T3.1(a) IR T o

(e) Deferred income and expenses relate to fees billed/paid in e EERARAZEARGHEEELD
advance on service maintenance contracts. WIELEN TN EBEEAR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H 2 =—Z—=—F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

17. Deferred Taxation 17. IEEB EH
Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under BLERBENEZBEELIREFEEES2H
the liability method. FTE -
Movement in net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows: BELEREEE/(AB) FHEEHOT
Group
AEE
2012 2011
—_E—_—F —_F—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE R FAT
As at 1 January Kn—A—H 22,619 17,922
Credited to the consolidated SFAGEREER
income statement (Note 23) (Ki7E23) 3,170 6,002
Exchange difference X ZE5 333 (1,305)
As at 31 December R+-_A=+—H 26,122 22,619
Movements of the gross deferred tax assets and liabilities during the FRANELENBEEELABAEEHN
year are as follows: T
Group
rE
2012 2011
Deferred tax assets — EERIEBEE— —_E-—F —E——14F
Inventories and trade receivables provisions FERESEWRFERE HK$’000 HK$’000
TE R FAET
As at 1 January Rn—HA—H 49,622 42,008
Credited to the consolidated income statement FAREBRER 5,677 9,217
Exchange difference E X =% 436 (1,603)
As at 31 December Rt+-—_A=+—H 55,735 49,622
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 =—Z—=—F+=-_A=+—HILFE

17. Deferred Taxation continved) 17. IEE R IE (&)
Group
&
2012 2011
Deferred tax liabilities — FEEBEEE— —E—_fF — T ——4
Accelerated tax depreciation MEBIEITE HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT

As at 1 January Hn—A—H (27,003) (24,086)
Charged to the consolidated income statement 75(\\ SEBRRHE (2,507) (3,215)
Exchange difference PEH Z%8 (103) 298
As at 31 December +—A=+— (29,613) (27,003)

18. Borrowings

Group

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 T T FET

Non-current FERE
Unsecured bank borrowings EILAIBITEE (@) 718,985 665,403
Secured mortgage loan BEBIRIBE R (o) 27,850 31,414
Finance lease liabilities BREHAEAE () 114 610
746,949 697,427

Current B

Unsecured bank borrowings MIEMRITIEE (@) 1,515,634 1,169,188
Secured mortgage loan EHRARBER (b) 3,564 3,564
Finance lease liabilities MEREAE (@) 450 795
1,519,648 1,173,547
Total borrowings BEE (d) 2,266,597 1,870,974
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H 2 =—Z—=—F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

. ﬁ o
18. BOIrowings continve 18. a8

Notes: st -

(@  Unsecured bank borrowings (a) EERRTES
The loans are unsecured and bear interest at rates as disclosed in section B A EIRARIET XA EZFIX
(d) below. The loans are repayable within twelve months except for HE. BHARIELRNES  HE
syndicated loans in the amount of HK$698,985,000 (2011: B & £698,9850005 T (—Z & — —F :
HK$605,403,000) which are repayable on 27 September 2015 (2011: 30 605,403,000 70) BIZER — T — R & A,
August 2013). E-++tREsg8(—s——F: T —

=ENA=TH)

(b)  Secured mortgage loan b) BERRBEEXR
The loan is secured by a building with net book value of HK$60,854,000 R-T——F+—-_A=+—H BZH
as at 31 December 2012 (2011: HK$62,155,000). 8 3% /560,854,000 7% 7T 7 & T2 4

I (ZF——%F : 62,155,000/ L) °

(c) Finance lease liabilities (c) MmEENES
Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased asset HRENBEBEESENRENEETH
revert to the lessor in the event of default. A HEEAEERAFEM -
Group
rE
2012 2011
—E-—C=fF —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Gross finance lease liabilities REEEBELT
— minimum lease payments: —BEBEEMK:
Within 1 year —FR 999
Between 1 and 5 years —FERF 759
1,758
Future finance charges on finance leases BEAEMNRKBESTH (353)
1,405
The present value of finance lease MEHEEENRAEDT -
liabilities is as follows:
Within 1 year —FR 795
Between 1 and 5 years —FERF 610
1,405
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 =T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

: '
18. BOrrowings continved) 18. B & @)
Notes: (continued) Bt : (&)
(d)  As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s borrowings were repayable as d R=ZB-—Z=ZF+ZA=+—-H %x&
follows: EHEENEEDT :
Group
AEE
Bank borrowings Financial lease liabilities Total
RITEE MEHEEE &

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

=t =S —E—F —E--f —E——F —E--f 25

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

THER T TERT FiHT FTExT FHT

Within 1 year —FR 1,519,198 1,172,752 1,519,648 1,173,547
Between 1 and 2 years —EZWME 23,564 648,967 23,678 649,577
Between 2 and 5 years MEERF 709,677 30,692 709,677 30,692

After 5 years BBARF 13,594 17,158 13,594 17,158
2,266,033 1,869,569 X 2,266,597 1,870,974
The effective interest rates were as follows: BERMEDOT -
2012 2011
—E-—& —T——fF
Unsecured bank borrowings EEWRTEE 1.51%-9.00% 1.58%—10.45%
Secured mortgage loan BERFIRBER 1.28% 0.99%
Finance lease liabilities mEHERE 7.00% 7.00%
The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their fair values. EEMNEmMEHREATEMES -
The carrying amounts of the borrowings were denominated in the EEMEBEN NNEBTE:

following currencies:

Group

rE
2012 2011
—E—C-F —T——%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHETT
HK$ o 91,414 135,985
RMB AR 240,590 210,980
S$ N T 174,483 37,124
uss$ e 1,508,995 1,327,727
THB E S 225,958 132,397

RP HEE 25,157 26,761

2,266,597 1,870,974
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19. Turnover and Segment Information 10. XK 2 EE R

Segment information has been prepared in a manner consistent with
the information used by the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments. The Group’s most senior
executive management has been identified as the Board. In this regard,
the Group’s senior executive management monitors the results
attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is segment results,
including items specifically attributed to individual segments, such as
directors’ and auditors’ remuneration and other administration costs
within the segment.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments for the

DEERTDIRBEASEE RS ETHR

ERABRTIESBERARHHHEE
BRREMABN —FzAAMBER - K
EEzERETHERABEREES -
REME AEBZEEBITREREAE
BUTEEEEZARESD I EIE 2

WaH kR REDMELENHER
MREENRXOEEZSE DA -

REDEBRMZEAETERDMBERE
BREER DRI EEHIAR  flINE
ERZBEMEREM D BAZTTHA
F o

FARSERERD I LFHDHBRA

ZAHmEDBEMETIMT

purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the year is set out below.

(@) Business segments

B
i
JiE)
E

TEXHOEET

The main business segments of the Group are the following:

Segments Principal activities
728 FEEK
Distribution Distribution of IT products (desktop PCs, notebooks, tablets, handhelds, printers,

CPUs, hard disks, memory devices, etc) for the commercial and consumer markets.
o= REXELEEMSDHEMBRER(R LB ELARER  FREM -
FIREM - JTEH - R EiBes B8 BREES -
Enterprise systems Provision of enterprise system tools (middleware, operating systems, Unix/NT
servers, databases, storage and security products) for IT infrastructure.

PERS HEEARKARLZBHOCERATA(REMS  BERF - UnivNTRIRES -
HEE BEARTER) -

IT services IT infrastructure design and implementation, training, maintenance and
support services.

BB IR BB ER R MR RINTT B BIERERT
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19. Turnover and Segment Information continve)

(@)

Business segments (continued)

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2012 are

as follows:

Total segment revenue

7 ab Uk R AR

Segment results
Finance costs

Share of associates’ profits

MBEM

{5 A7)
% FI

Profit before taxation B 4 AT i
Taxation 1A

Profit for the year R
Reportable segment assets ~ A] ¥R & 7 %0 & &

Distribution
HK$°000
FE T
29,998,220
466,245

6,248,133

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2011 are

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R R B R (&)

——F+ZA=tT—HIEE

9. EXBERTHMER

BE_Z-——_F+-A=+—H
IEFENDBMEEDT :

Enterprise
systems IT services

m%%.uu ﬁ%ﬂ*ﬂ&ﬁﬁﬁ
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TET
6,873,874 225,498
135,366 9,508

Group
AEE
HK$’000
FET
37,097,592

611,119
(75,862)

535,257

36,304

571,561
(107,162)

464,399

1,688,291 49,509

7,985,933

BE-T-—F+t-A=T—H

as follows: IFFERNDIEENT :
Enterprise
Distribution systems IT services Group
balic! TERGE EABRERS KEE
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FHET AT
Total segment revenue o ab ik A EE 26,772,547 5,669,718 174,793 32,617,058
Segment results DEEGA 544,345 145,156 11,142 700,643
Finance costs Bt i% & A (103,654)
596,989
Share of associates’ profits %3 {5 Bt 44 A 7
5% ) 37,592
Profit before taxation M 75 Rl Y A 634,581
Taxation iE (145,787)
Profit for the year 732 Fl 488,794
Reportable segment assets ~ AJ R &5 9 S & E 4,985,592 1,228,681 34,056 6,248,329
BEHEZERERLA —Z—FFR
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Tt ASt+-ALER

19. Turnover and Segment Information continve)

(@)

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Business segments (continued)

The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes only one
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the
Group’s revenue. Distribution revenue from the customer
amounted to approximately HK$7,636,000,000 (2011:
HK$3,334,000,000).

Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss
and assets

Profit

Reconciliation of segment profit to the profit for the year in the
consolidated income statement is not presented as the segment
profit is the same as the profit for the year presented in the
consolidated income statement.

Assets

EEHENTHER @

@) ¥=&DE )

AEEMERPEZTIL EBRE—
BRGFEBAREREZET10%H
BFE -REZGBEFPHMNDHEEER
49 4% 7,636,000,00058 T (= F — —
4 : 3,334,000,0007% 7T) °

A ¥R & 0w A R R K

—
(=)
-

BEENHIKR

i I

EEE"“* = ) £

51 80 4 A3 A AR R

RAEBBERME

A 2 I 4R

BEERAD M E?’FJE@EW@?’FU

¥ AR o

2012
—E—C—F
HK$’000
TRERT

Reportable segment assets AHENEEE
Goodwill Bk

Interest in associates Rt & AR ER
Deferred tax assets ELEFIBE E

Other receivables and prepayments

Cash and cash equivalents ReRFACEEY

Ho A 8 Y R IA e FEA ROR

7,985,933
339,756

310,172

55,735
219,821
936,009

Consolidated total assets REBEE

9,847,426

Annual Report 2012

2011
—E——%
HK$'000
Fib T
6,248,329
327,689
277,047
49,622
69,294
1,673,134

8,545,115
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19 EXBERTHER =

i & E R

AEBEMMEXB DM EEEIL
ERRAEEE -

19. Turnover and Segment Information continve)

(c) Geographical information ()

The Group’s two business segments operate principally in North
Asia and South East Asia.

2012 2011
—E——fF —T——%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE T FET

Revenue Iy =
North Asia bl 28,651,797 24,701,806
South East Asia R 8,445,795 7,915,252
Total segment revenue 2 2B UL = AR EE 37,097,592 32,617,058

Revenue is allocated based on the country in which the customer

WEREEPHEBRRE D

is located.

2012 2011
—B--F —F—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#E T FHET

Assets E5E
North Asia it g8 5,681,808 4,305,212
South East Asia WHEo 2,304,125 1,943,117
Reportable segment assets AHREDLEE 7,985,933 6,248,329

Reportable segment assets are allocated based on where the

assets are located.

20. Other Gains, Net

20.

AREDHEERBEEEME M

H W A F 2

2012 2011
—E-C—F —ET——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH T FAET
Interest income FE WA 7,795 11,838
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEYE BEMERE

and equipment Z BB (230) (1,191)
Net exchange gain [ 5 W= %5 1,462 11,100
Other Hih 11,532 10,490
20,559 32,237
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21. Operating Profit

Operating profit is derived after charging the following:

21,

e mA

RN IA TS BTG -

2012
—_E-—fF
HK$’000
FTET

Cost of inventories

Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments

— Salaries, allowances and welfare
— Provident fund contributions
Equity-settled share-based payment
Operating lease rentals in respect of
premises and warehouse
Auditors’ remuneration
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
Provision for and write off of inventories
Provision for and write off of
trade receivables

FERA

BTN (BRESEH)
—Fx  ERER

—AEEHK

VAR S22 #E 2 4 B

MERERZEE
HERE

Z BB B 2
ME - BE &
RIEIWE

T & B 1 R 8
B 5 R R R
Ko 58

|

35,677,636
379,648
54,368
10,228

55,203
7,363

19,354
12,582

46,602

22. Finance Costs

22.

B%ER

2012
—E—-C—F
HK$’000
TER

Interest expense on:
— Bank overdrafts
— Unsecured bank borrowings
— Secured bank borrowings
— Secured mortgage loan
— Finance lease liabilities

THEHEZMNBFHX

—RITEX

—EEMRITEE
—BEMRITEE
— BEMRBER
—RMEHERE

25
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2011
—EF——4F
HK$’000
FHET

30,971,852

381,605
53,757
8,920

50,895
5,833

16,519
131,763

56,365

2011

HK$'000
THETT

25
102,283
721
365

260

108,654
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23. Taxation

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income statement
represents:

. BiIA

RIEFEBERNBZHETIE

Current taxation NEARIE
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —BENEB
— Overseas taxation — BHNELIE
Over-provision of Hong Kong BAFERENEH
Profits Tax in prior years FREE R

(Over)/under-provision of overseas taxation
in prior years
Deferred taxation (Note 17)

BETR
BRI (HaE17)

BEFEEIIHEBEREB)

2012 2011
—E——fF —EF——

HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TET
55,028 58,464
57,813 91,865
(12) (219)

(2,497) 1,679
(3,170) (6,002)
107,162 145,787

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2011:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31
December 2012.

Overseas taxation has been calculated based on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at rates of taxation prevailing in the
countries in which the entities comprising the Group operate.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate as follows:

EBNEMIEBEE_ET——F+_-A
=+ — B i FE ARG R A
16.5% M K (ZF ——4F : 16.5%) 51 12 &
fi ©

850 BUR 1R 4F PO 2 1 5t B SR B P A
EERTEREEFERR LB AOHE
cEg

7 5% [ BR B A s R 2 B TR B R R R A
BZEmeBIERENT

Profit before taxation

Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%
Effect of different tax rates in different
tax jurisdictions

Income not subject to taxation

Expenses not deductible for
taxation purposes

(Over)/under-provision in prior years

Tax losses for which no deferred tax
assets were recognised

Tax effect of withholding tax of profit from
the PRC subsidiaries

Taxation charge

2012 2011
—E——F —E——4%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
B A A& 571,561 634,581
R R16.5%+E 2 Fi1E 94,308 104,706
TRABEAERETRATE 2 FE
3,043 20,084
BERB WA (1,941) (1,820)
REBBmE TEMR A
10,074 16,289
BEFE GBEREG) BETR (2,509) 1,460
WEBRRELEHBEE
w) H I8 5 18 1,473 1,688
BB BB A B0k B BB B
B 7S 0 & 2,714 3,380
MBS T 107,162 145,787
BHERERAT —T— —FE5R
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24. Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the  24. 78 %ﬂ AESEE AR

Company Py

The profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for the year H=E —HFE+ZA=F+—RAL#F
ended 31 December 2012 is dealt with in the financial statements of the EX $ RIS HRRFPEE 2 AR A
Company to the extent of HK$31,128,000 (2011: HK$61,439,000). M A A FER & T 431,128,000 7T

(== ——4 61,439,000/ 7T) °

s 3¢ 4+
25. Proposed Dividends Attributable to Equity % EEEREEAELGR
Shareholders B
2012 2011
=B—=% —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTET FHET
Final dividend proposed after the REEHZERIRRIBPRE
balance sheet date of HK8 cents % L 33 A& 8 8 1L
(2011: HK8 cents) per ordinary share (ZZT——F :8/1L) 100,000 100,000
The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has not been REEREREABRETEREER
recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date. HREEE-
26. Earnings Per Share 26. BRER
Basic =N
The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year is based on the AFEEERERBMDEARRRERFF
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of B A JE 1 % 7 444,236,000 T (= F —
HK$444,236,000 (2011: HK$462,516,000) and the weighted average — % 1 462,616,000/8 7T) & F A B # 1T
of 1,240,052,000 shares (2011: 1,256,898,000 shares) in issue during Rt 2 hn i ~F 15 £11,240,052,000 % (= F
the year. ——4 :1,256,898,000%) st 15 H -
2012 2011
—E—_—fF —E——F
Issued ordinary shares as at R—A— BB
1 January (thousands) T AR (F AR 1,240,657 1,258,889
Repurchase for own shares (thousands) B B 7R & R 4 (FAR) (605) (1,991)
Weighted average number of ordinary RT+-_A=+—BZAMKMNE
shares as at 31 December (thousands) FHE(FRR) 1,240,052 1,256,898
Basic earnings per share FREXRZT
(HK cents per share) (BBl 36.80
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 =—Z—=—F+=-_A=+—HILFE

26. Earnings Per Share continued) 26. ERE R )
Diluted s
The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year is based on AEESRBFERF DIRARBER
the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of A AJE 5% F444,236,00008 T (= &
HK$444,236,000 (2011: HK$462,516,000) and the weighted average — — 4F 1 462,516,000 7T ) & B% 19 o0 4
number of shares of 1,243,245,000 (2011: 1,260,398,000 shares), S 5 81,243,245,0000% ( — & — — & ¢
calculated as follows: 1,260,398,000 %) 5T & a0 T :
2012 2011
—E——F —EF——F
Weighted average number of ordinary BT R INE
shares in issue (thousands) FHE(FRR) 1,240,052 1,256,898
Adjustment for assumed conversion of BRI s i
share options (thousands) ZRAB(TR) 3,193 3,500
Weighted average number of ordinary % 5 2 A 2 AR hn i
shares for diluted earnings per share FHE (TR
(thousands) 1,243,245 1,260,398
Diluted earnings per share FREERT
(HK cents per share) (= B8l 35.73 36.70
. . = =5
27. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 21 EEREREEENE
Emoluments
(@) Directors’ emoluments @ EEME
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable to RENENNENTARARES
Directors of the Company during the year are as follows: & BB
2012 2011
—E—_—F —_F—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Fees e 1,633 924
Other emoluments Hfth B &
— Basic salaries and housing allowances  — E A% 4 RE R E85 10,883 10,224
— Discretionary bonus — BB 5,978 4,448
— Contributions to pension scheme — RIRFT B R 576 405
— Equity-settled share-based payments — Uz ESEE
HRIE 3,758 2,231

22,828 18,232

BAZRERIA —T-—FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H 2 =—Z—=—F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

27. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 2. EEREREEEMNSE

Emoluments ontineq) ()
(@) Directors’ emoluments (continuea) @ EE=EME @
The remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31 REBEE_ZET——F+=-_A=+—
December 2012 is set out below: BEFE SEFz2M&E7 W
T
Basic salaries Contribution  Equity-settled
and housing Discretionary to pension  share-based
Name of Director Fees allowance bonus scheme payment Total
EXFHER BURB X2
BEEHA e EERE MIERA BARGEMR ERLENE &%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
THET TER TERT THET THET THET
Executive Directors WITES
Li Jialin ZHEM 4,800 3,200 9,330
Chow Ying Chi PRE 785 485 2,177
Ong Wei Hiam, Wiliam TEMN 2,100 1,027 3,954
Chan Hoi Chau = 787 789 2,332
Mao Xianggjian ESEkD) 2,411 477 3,101
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Tay Eng Hoe oA
Liu L ElEd]
Independent Non-executive BUERITES
Directors
Chan Po Fun, Peter REZ
Li Wei FE
Ng Yat Cheung RBE

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2012
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 =—Z—=—F+=-_A=+—HILFE

27. Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Emoluments (ontinued)

(@)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

The remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31
December 2011 is set out below:

Basic salaries

1. EEREREEENE

(%)

(@

EEME

RBE-F——F+=A=1—
BHLEEE SF2 M2 m
T~

Contributionto  Equity-settled

and housing Discretionary pension share-based
Name of Director Fees allowance bonus scheme payment Total
EXFe R VAR 3 2 154 2.
E g we BB BIEIEAL RN EIfR #RBEENE CH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FAT FAT FHAT FET
Executive Directors WITES
Li Jialin FEM - 5,200 800 300 697 6,997
Ong Wei Hiam, William TRIT 238 1,180 630 12 565 2,625
Chan Hoi Chau B M - 748 789 12 558 2,107
Mao Xiangaian EMA] - 2,353 2,229 81 115 4778
Non-executive Directors FRITES
Tay Eng Hoe # 5K AN 303 743 - - 110 1,156
Liu Li 250 62 - - - - 62
Independent Non-executive BURITES
Directors
Chan Po Fun, Peter ek o 2% 126 — — - 93 219
Li Wei EY ] 106 — - - 93 199
Ng Yat Cheung RBE 32 - — — — 32
Ni Zhenwei R iR & 57 - - - - 57
924 10,224 4,448 405 2,231 18,232

Directors’” emoluments disclosed above include approximately
HK$628,000 (2011: HK$507,000) paid to Independent Non-
executive Directors.

No emoluments have been paid to these individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office during the year (2011: HK$Nil).

During the year, no Director of the Company waived any
emoluments (2011: HK$NIl).

X EsEEMNE BE N
T B 3L FE 1T E F H) £9628,000 78
JTL(ZZF——% : 507,000 T) °

F L R £t A+ ST A B
B(ZE——F T ERHA
BRFMARNEBEHEFMAR
SERZERNIEQRERME -

RER - ARAEEILEREHRR
FaME (T ——F:FET) -

BAZRERIA —T-—FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H 2 =—Z—=—F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

27. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 2. EEREREEEMNSE
Em0|UmentS (continued) (/%%S)
(b) Five highest paid individuals b)) EEESHAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the REBEFAZREHZRHALTE
Group for the year included one (2011: two) Directors whose BT ——F MB)EE
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The BECHESEREXFEN 2D
emoluments payable to the remaining four (2011: three) MARE - RFEAZNTFEBNE
individuals during the year are as follows: —E——F:=ZH)ATZHE W
™
2012 2011
—E—_F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FHET
Basic salaries and allowances EXRF & RERL 4,889 4,811
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAT 17,383 14,935

Contributions to pension schemes IRIRET B3R 224 49

22,496 19,795

The emoluments fell within the following bands: Be N F T 5 &6 E :

Number of individuals

Emolument band B £ 5 2011
—EF——%F
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7% 7T & 4,500,000 7% 7T 2

HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 /& 7T % 5,000,000 % 7T
HK$5,000,001 — HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 % JT Z 5,500,000 7T
HK$8,000,001 — HK$8,500,000 8,000,001 % JT Z 8,500,000/% 7T
HK$11,000,001 — HK$11,500,000 11,000,001 % JT & 11,500,000% 7T
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 =—Z—=—F+=-_A=+—HILFE

(@) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash

generated from operations

28. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 28. &R &K E R KM =F

@) @mmﬁﬂﬁgﬁﬁéi
ZIEEFEHE R

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had future aggregate minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

2012 2011
s —E——F
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FER FiET
Profit before taxation R T A i ) 571,561 634,581
Interest income N ON (7,795) (11,838)
Interest expense ez H 75,862 103,654
Depreciation of property, plant ME - - BEREBITE
and equipment 19,354 16,519
Share of associates’ profits PaR (g R /NCIb: (36,304) (37,592)
Equity-settled share-based payment AR Stz st E
RIB 10,228 8,920
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME BELREZ
and equipment &5 18 230 1,191
Operating profit before working capital EEECEBRIZ
changes £82 a F| 633,136 715,435
Changes in working capital LEEEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b E Y FIR (1,296,917) 84,655
Inventories & (595,783) (158,325)
Trade and other payables B RHMEMNRE 534,988 45,238
Net cash (used in)/generated K& (TR Ffs
from operations e FE (724,576) 687,003
29. Commitments Under Operating Leases 29 REHEE N 2 &L

R-EBE——F+-_HA=+—H K&£E
BETAIBEZCEHEMEEZAR
BRESMZEENT -

Within 1 year
Between 1 and 5 years

—FNR
—FERF

2012 2011
—E-——F —T——%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FAET
30,739 31,694
25,903 47,955
56,642 79,649

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties and items
of plant and machinery and office equipment held under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to three years,
with an option to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated.

None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

REERZENDEMANEEHEREZ
WELEMARRRERBERE 2AHE
AN-BOZNFFR KRR/ —E=F"
EREEAYSHERMAGRR - B E
HOeksRrBEE-

BAZRERIA —T-—FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H 2 =—Z—=—F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

30. Related Party Transactions

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

(@)

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Director’s quarter

The Group entered into a rental agreement with Joint Honour
Development Limited, a company in which Mr. Li Jialin, the
former Chairman and a former executive Director of the Company
is a major shareholder, in respect of a director’'s quarter.
Pursuant to the agreement, the Group paid a monthly rental of
HK$200,000 to Joint Honour Development Limited (2011:
HK$200,000). The agreement was terminated on 31 October
2012.

License fee

The Group also entered into an agreement with Kong Lung Ind
Co., a company in which Mr. Li is a major shareholder. Pursuant
to the agreement, the Group paid a monthly license fee of
HK$14,000 in respect of the China-Hong Kong Vehicle License
to Kong Lung Ind Co (2011: HK$14,000).

Key management compensation (including the
amounts disclosed in note 27)
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NTREREATETZIRS

(@)

Short-term employment benefits G A E B 12 A
Other long-term employment benefits HEiEHESRFT
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31. Possible Impact of Amendments, New 31.
Standards and Interpretations Issued but not
Yet Effective for the Year ended 31 December

2012

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments and five new standards which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2012 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements. These include the following

which may be relevant to the Group:
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Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after
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Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of BB GETERE 1R 1 July 2012
financial statements — Presentation of (5T AK) - B # &z —E——_%+A—H

items and other comprehensive income

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in

other entities

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKAS 27 (2011), Separate financial statements

HKAS 28, Investments in associates and
joint ventures

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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31. Possible Impact of Amendments, New

Standards and Interpretations Issued but not
\2{8’% Effective for the Year ended 31 December
(continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements
except for the following:

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements — Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

The amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to present separately the
items of other comprehensive income that would be reclassified to
profit or loss in the future if certain conditions are met from those that
would never be reclassified to profit or loss. The Group’s presentation
of other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when the
amendments are adopted for the first time.

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27, Consolidated and
separate financial statements, relating to the preparation of
consolidated financial statements and HK-SIC 12, Consolidation —
Special purpose entities. It introduces a single control model to
determine whether an investee should be consolidated, by focusing on
whether the entity has power over the investee, exposure to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and the ability to use its
power to affect the amount of those returns.

The application of HKFRS 10 is not expected to change any of the
control conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its involvement
with other entities as at 1 January 2013. However, it may in the future
result in investees being consolidated which would not have been
consolidated under the Group’s existing policies or vice versa.
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31. Possible Impact of Amendments, New

Standards and Interpretations Issued but not
\2{8’[1 Eﬁective for the Year ended 31 December
(continued)

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the disclosure
requirements relevant to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and unconsolidated structured entities. The
disclosures required in HKFRS 12 are generally more extensive than
those required in the current standards. The Group may have to make
additional disclosures about its interests in other entities when the
standard is adopted for the first time in 2013.

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual HKFRSs with a
single source of fair value measurement guidance. HKFRS 13 also
contains extensive disclosure requirements about fair value
measurements for both financial instruments and non-financial
instruments. HKFRS 13 is effective as from 1 January 2013, but
retrospective adoption is not required. The Group estimates that the
adoption of HKFRS 13 will not have any significant impact on the fair
value measurements of its assets and liabilities, but additional
disclosures may need to be made in the 2013 financial statements.
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Financial Summary

BB E

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out below:

Results

A 173 i

E§

Turnover |

Profit before taxation B 35 A&

Taxation HIA

Profit for the year/period & H R F

Attributable to: AT AL & :
Equity Shareholders of QA S

the Company BAEA

Non-controlling interests FEPE R =

Assets and Liabilities

EERAERE

Total assets BB E
Total liabilities was
Total equity arEn

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Year ended

31 December
2012
BE-Z-—=F
+=BA=+-—-8H
LFE
HK$’000

THER
37,097,592

571,561
(107,162)

464,399

444,236
20,163

464,399

As at
31 December
2012

+=A=+—-H
HK$’000
TER
9,847,426
(6,612,744)

3,234,682

AEEBET MY BFRE L LEARE
EEABEERIMT

Nine months

Year ended Year ended ended Year ended

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 March
2011 2010 2009 2009
HE-_Z——% HE—_Z-Z HE-_ZZNGFE HE-_ZZNE
+ZA=+—-8 +zZA=+—-8A +zZA=+—8H “A=+—8
IEFE IEFE IENE A IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

TET FHET FET FET
32,617,058 26,212,600 19,705,697 22,091,272
634,581 510,363 420,714 318,414
(145,787) (102,305) (100,887) (56,605)
488,794 408,058 319,827 261,809

462,516 370,280 276,333 231,624

26,278 37,778 43,494 30,185

488,794 408,058 319,827 261,809

As at As at As at As at

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 March
2011 2010 2009 2009
RZT——%F RZZT—ZF RZZETRF RZZEZTNF
+-ZA=+—H +ZA=+—H +ZA=+-—H “A=+—8
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET TET TET FET
8,545,115 7,905,510 6,391,828 4,755,011
(5,747,886) (5,679,178) (4,494,639) (3,403,719)
2,797,229 2,326,332 1,897,189 1,351,292
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